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INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR'S  REPORT

To the Commissioners  of the
Henry  County  Water  District  #2

Campbellsburg,  Kentucky  40014

Report  on the Financial  Statements

We have audited  the accompanying  financial  statements  of Henry  County  Water  District  #2 as of and for the years  ended
December  31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial  statements,  which  collectively  comprise  the Henry
County  Water  District  #2's  basic  financial  statements  as listed in the table of contents.

Management's  Responsibility  for  the  Financial  Statements

Management  is responsible  for the preparation  and fair presentation  of these financial  statements  in accordance  with
accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in the United States  of America;  this includes  the design, implementation,  and
maintenance  of internal  control  relevant  to the preparation  and fair presentation  of financial  statements  that are free from
material  misstatement,  whether  due to fraud or error.

Auditor's  Responsibility

Our responsibility  is to express  an opinion  on these  financial  statements  based on our audit. We conducted  our audit in
accordance  with auditing  standards  generally  accepted  in the United States  of America  and the standards  applicable  to
financial  audits  contained  in Government  Auditing  Standards,  issued by the Comptroller  General  of the United States.
Those  standards  require  that  we plan and perform  the audit to obtain  reasonable  assurance  about  whether  the financial
statements  are free from material  misstatement.

An audit involves  performing  procedures  to obtain audit evidence  about the amounts  and disclosures  in the financial
statements.  The procedures  selected  depend  on the auditor's  judgment,  including  the assessment  of the risks of material
misstatement  of the financial  statements,  whether  due to fraud or error.  In making  those risk assessments,  the auditor
considers  internal  control  relevant  to the entity's  preparation  and fair presentation  of the financial  statements  in order  to
design  audit procedures  that  are appropriate  in the circumstances,  but not for the purpose  of expressing  an opinion  on the
effectiveness  of the entity's  internal  control. Accordingly,  we express  no such opinion. An audit  also includes  evaluating
the appropriateness  of accounting  policies  used and the reasonableness  of significant  accounting  estimates  made by

management,  as well as evaluating  the overall  presentation  of the financial  statements.

We believe  that the audit  evidence  we have obtained  is sufficient  and appropriate  to provide  a basis  for our audit  opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion,  the financial  statements  referred  to above  present  fairly, in all material  respects,  the financial  position  of the
Henry  County  Water  District  #2, as of December  31, 2018 and 2017, and the respective  changes  in financial  position  and
cash flows  thereof  for the years  then ended  in accordance  with accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in the United  States
of America.

Change  in Accounting  Principle

As discussed  in Note 22 to the financial  statements,  in 2018 the District  adopted  new accounting  guidance,  GASBS  No. 75,
Accounting  and Financial  Reporting  for  Postemployment  Benefits  Other  Than Pensions.  Our opinion  is not modified  with
respect  to this matter.

Members  -  Private  Companies  Practice  Section  of  the American  Institute  of CPAs
Members  -  Kentucky  Society  of  Certified  Public  Accountants
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To the Commissioners of the 
Henry County Water District #2 

Campbellsburg, Kentucky 40011 

Report on the Financial Statements 

P.O. Box 354 • 513 Highland Ave • Carrollton, KY 41008 
502- 732-6655 • taxes@rzwcpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Henry County Water District #2 as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Henry 
County Water District #2's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Henry County Water District #2, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and 
cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Change In Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 22 to the financial statements, in 2018 the District adopted new accounting guidance, GASBS No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporling for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

Members - Private Companies Practice Section of the American Institute or CPAs 
Members - Kentucky Society of Certified Public Accountants Page 1 



Commissioners  of  the
Henry  County  Water  District  #2

Page  Two

Other  Matters

Required  Supplementary  Information

Accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in the United States of America  require that the required supplementary

information  listed in the Table  of Contents  on pages  31 through 34, be presented  to supplement  the basic financial

statements.  Such information,  although  not a part of the basic financial  statements,  is required  by the Governmental

Accounting  Standards  Board who considers  it to be an essential  part of financial  reporting  for placing  the basic financial

statements  in an appropriate  operational,  economic,  or historical  context. We have applied  certain limited  procedures  to

the required  supplementary  information  in accordance  with auditing  standards  generally  accepted  in the United  States  of

America,  which consisted  of inquiries  of management  about  the methods  of preparing  the information  and comparing  the

information  for consistency  with management's  responses  to our inquiries,  the basic financial  statements,  and other

knowledge  we obtained  during  our  audit  of the basic  financial  statements.  We do not express  an opinion  or provide  any

assurance  on the information  because  the limited procedures  do not provide  us with sufficient  evidence  to express  an

opinion  or provide  any assurance.

Management  has omitted  the management's  discussion  and analysis  that  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in the

United  States  of America  require  to be presented  to supplement  the basic  financial  statements.  Such missing  information,

although  not a part of the basic  financial  statements,  is required  by the Governmental  Accounting  Standards  Board who

considers  it to be an essential  part of financial  reporting  for placing the basic financial  statements  in an appropriate

operational,  economic,  or historical  context. Our opinion  on the basic financial  statements  is not affected  by this missing

information.

Other  Reporting  Required  by GovernmentAuditing  Standards

In accordance  with Government  Auditing  Standards,  we have also issued our report  dated June 28, 2019, on our

consideration  of the Henry County  Water  District  #2's internal control  over financial  reporting  and on our tests of its

compliance  with certain  provisions  of laws, regulations,  contracts,  and grant  agreements  and other  matters.  The purpose

of that report  is solely  to describe  the scope  of our testing  of internal  control  over  financial  reporting  and compliance  and

the results  of that testing,  and not to provide  an opinion  on the effectiveness  of the Henry  County  Water  District  #2's  internal

control  over  financial  reporting  or on compliance.  That  report  is an integral  part of an audit  performed  in accordance  with

GovernmentAuditing  Standards  in considering  Henry  CountyWater  District#2's  internal  control  overfinancial  reporting  and

compliance.

RAISOR,  ZAPP & WOODS,  PSC

Certified  Public  Accountants
Carrollton,  Kentucky

June  28, 2019

Raisor,  Zapp  & Woods,  p.s.c.

CEFITIFIED PljBLIC ACCOkJNTANTS
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary 
information listed in the Table of Contents on pages 31 through 34, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing 
information. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 28, 2019, on our 
consideration of the Henry County Water District #2's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Henry County Water District #2's internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Henry County Water District #2's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

12�,� \ w�rPSL 
RAISOR, ZAPP & WOODS, PSC 
Certified Public Accountants 
Carrollton, Kentucky 

June 28, 2019 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

ST  ATEMENT  OF NET  POSITION

December  31, 2018  and  2017

ASSETS

Current  ASSets:

Cash,  Including  Time  Deposits

Accrued  Interest  Receivable

Accounts  Receivable  (Net)

Other  Receivables

Inventory

Prepaid  Expense

Total  Current  AssetS

Noncurrent  Assets:

Restricted  ASsets:

Cash,  Including  Time  Deposits

Accrued  Interest  Receivable

Capital  Assets  (Net)

Total  Noncurrent  Assets

Total  Assets

DEFERRED  OUTFLOWS  OF RESOURCES

Attributable  to Employee  Pension  Plan

Attributable  to Employee  OPEB  Plan

Deferred  Loss  - Early  Debt  Retirement

Total  Deferred  Outflows  of Resources

LIABILITIES

Current  Liabilities:

Accounts  Payable

Accounts  Payable  - Construction

Accrued  Compensated  Absences

Accrued  Salaries,  Wages  & Benefits

Accrued  Payroll  Taxes/Employee  Withholding

Utility  Tax  Payable

Sales  Tax  Payable

Funds  Held  for  Future  Lines

Current  Liabilities  Payable  from  Restricted  Assets:

Accrued  Interest  Payable  - Customer  Deposits

Accrued  Interest  - Notes  Payable

Revenue  Bonds  Payable

Notes  Payable

Total  Current  Liabilities

Noncurrent  Liabilities:

Revenue  Bonds  Payable  (Net  of Unamortized  Bond  Discount  &

Premium  of $3,604  for  2018  and $3,988  for  2C)1 7)

Notes  Payable

Net  Pension  Liability

Net  OPEB  Liability

Noncurrent  Liabilities  Payable  from  Restricted  Assets:

Customer  Deposits  Payable

Total  Noncurrent  Liabilities

Total  Liabilities

DEFERRED  INFLOWS  OF RESOURCES

Attributable  to Employee  Pension  Plan

Attributable  to Employee  OPEB  Plan

Total  Deferred  Inflows  of Resources

NET  POSITION

Net  Investment  in Capital  Assets

Restricted  for  Capital  Projects

Restricted  for  Debt  Service

Unrestricted  (deficit)

Total  Net  Position

See  accompanying  notes  to  the  basic  financial  statements.

2018

286,356

213

436,984

306

130,659

42,084

896,602

$ 1,645,057

730

16,963,336

$ 18,609,123

$ 19,505,725

439,329

139,  130

178  018

75B,477

96,787

25,913

23,893

20,933

7,355

539

1 ,600

4 ,058

5 ,708

442,000

192,904

821690

4,515,604

3,721  ,453

2,012,785

586,743

102,775

10 ,939,360

11 ,761,050

196,073

128,817

324,890

$ 8,269,393

360,184

1,160,699

(1,614,014)

$ 8,176,262

Restated

2017

274,864

114

410  473

17,676

114,678

31 ,629

849,434

i ,660,220

1,356

17 ,149,885

18 ,811 ,461

19 ,660,895

642  069

169,184

195,  107

i,006,360

79,233

224,360

26,967

20 984

38,970

7,456

483

1 ,583

5,584

421 ,000

177,978

1,004,598

4,957  988

3,650,945

1,997,207

685,949

92,875

11 ,384,964

12 ,389,562

216  846

35,915

252,761

8,126  022

397,249

1108,196

(1 ,606,535)

8,024,932
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

2018 
Restated 

2017 

$ 756 477 

$ 18,609,123 
$ 19,505,725 

$ 439,329 
139, 130 
178,018 

$ 1,645,057 
730 

16,963,336 

274,864 
114 

410,473 
17,676 

114,678 
31629 

642,069 
169.184 
195, 107 

1,006,360 

849,434 

1,660,220 
1,356 

17,149 885 

19,660,895 
18,811,461 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

286,356 
213 

436,984 
306 

130,659 
42,084 

896,602 

$ 

$ 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash, Including Time Deposits 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Accounts Receivable (Net) 
Other Receivables 
Inventory 
Prepaid Expense 

Total Current Assets 
Noncurrent Assets: 

Restricted Assets: 
Cash, Including Tlme Deposits . 
Accrued Interest Receivable 

Capital Assets (Net) 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Attributable to Employee Pension Plan 
Attributable to Employee OPEB Plan 
Deferred Loss - Ea�y Debt Retirement 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

102 775 

$ 96,787 

$ 821,690 

$ 10,939,360 
$ 11761050 
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79,233 
224,360 

26,967 
20,984 
38,970 

7,456 
483 

8,024,932 

252 761 

92,875 

1,583 
5,584 

421,000 
177,978 

1 004,598 

216,846 
35 915 

4,957,988 
3,650,945 
1,997,207 

685,949 

8,126,022 
397,249 

1,108,196 
(1,606,535) 

11,384,964 
12,389,562 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

324,890 

196,073 
128,817 

8, 176,262 

8,269,393 
360,184 

1, 160,699 
(1,614,014) 

4,058 
5,708 

442,000 
192,904 

25,913 
23,893 
20,933 

7,355 
539 

1,600 

$ 4,515,604 
3,721,453 
2,012,785 

586,743 

s 

$ 

$ 

·$ 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable - Construction 
Accrued Compensated Absences 
Accrued Salaries, Wages & Benefits 
Accrued Payroll Taxes/Employee Withholding 
Utility Tax Payable 
Sales Tax Payable 
Funds Held for Future Lines 
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets: 

Accrued Interest Payable - Customer Deposits 
Accrued Interest - Notes Payable 
Revenue Bonds Payable 
Notes Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 
Noncurrent Llabilllles: 

Revenue Bonds Payable (Net of Unamortized Bond Discount & 
Premium of $3,604 for 2018 and $3,988 for 2017) 

Notes Payable 
Nlet Pension Liability 
Net OPEB Liability 
Noncurrent Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets: 

Customer Deposits Payable 
Total Noncurrent Llabllltles 

Total Liabilities 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Attributable to Employee Pension Plan 
Attributable to Employee OPEB Plan 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 
NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for Capital Projects 
Restricted for Debt Service 
Unrestricted (deficit) 
Total Net Position 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

STATEMENT  OF REVENUES,  EXPENSES,  AND  CHANGES  IN FUND  NET  POSITION

For  the  Years  Ended  December  31, 2018  and  2017

Operating  Revenues:

Charges  for  Services:

Water  Charges  (Net  of Estimated  Bad Debts)

Wholesale  Water  Charges

Total  Charges  for  Services

Other  Charges  and  Miscellaneous:

Reconnect  and  Disconnect  Charges

Forfeited  Discounts

Miscellaneous

Total  Other  Charges  and Miscellaneous

Total  Operating  Revenues

Operating  Expenses:

Accounting  and  Collecting  Labor

Chemicals

Commissioner  Salaries

Continuing  Education

Contractual  Services-Maintenance  of Mains/Distribution  System

Dues

Insurance

Maintenance  of Mains/Distribution  System  Expenses

Miscellaneous

Office  Supplies  and Expense

Operating  Labor

Other  Interest  Expense

Payroll  Taxes

Professional  Services

Purchased  Power

Regulatory  Fees

Employee  Benefits

Retirement  Expense

Transportation  Expense

Utilities

Depreciation  Expense

Total  Operating  Expenses

Net  Operating  Income

Nonoperating  Revenue  (Expense):

Investment  Income

Interest  Expense

Liquidated  Damages  Received

Gain/Loss  on Sale  or Abandonment  of  Assets

Total  Nonoperating  Revenue  (Expense)

Income  (Loss)  Before  Contributions

Capital  Contributions

Change  in Net  Position

Net  Position  - (As Previously  Stated)

Restatement  - (GASB  Statement  75)

Net  Position  - As Restated

Net  Position

2018

3,154,630

250,971

3,405,601

30,405

80,852

23,972

135,229

3,540,830

127,946

30,665

30,000

2 ,925

3 8,570

6,958

48,724

293,741

6,530

91,416

653,  173

2,789

69,117

60,637

411,125

7,458

187,255

322,903

20,428

31 ,894

773,056

3,217,310

323,520

13,329

(299,011)

65,000

1 ,032

(219,650)

103,870

47,460

151,330

8,024,932

8,024,932

8,176,262

Restated

2017

3,056,029

268,955

3,324,984

33,275

81,107

22,999

137,381

3,462,365

120,206

23,505

33,300

1 ,844

2 3,589

7,115

46,058

176,744

3,676

62,280

573,148

1 ,036

67,876

54,866

382,630

6,770

"198,392

397,032

27 ,110

28 ,870

737,034

2,973,08"l

489,284

9,111

(295,753)

2,912

(283,730)

205,554

104,906

310,460

8,208,911

(494,439)

7,714,472

8,024  ,932

See  accompanying  notes  to the  basic  financial  statements. Page  4

HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 

Restated 
Operating Revenues: 2018 2017 

Charges for Services: 
Water Charges (Net of Estimated Bad Debts) s 3, 154,630 $ 3,056,029 
Wholesale Water Charges 250,971 268,955 

Total Charges for Services $ 3,405,601 $ 3,324,984 
Other Charges and Miscellaneous: 

Reconnect and Disconnect Charges $ 30,405 $ 33,275 
Forfeited Discounts 80,852 81,107 
Miscellaneous 23,972 22,999 

Total Other Charges and Miscellaneous $ 135,229 $ 137,381 

Total Operating Revenues $ 3,540,830 $ 3,462,365 

Operating Expenses: 
Accounting and Collecting Labor $ 127,946 $ 120,206 
Chemicals 30,665 23,505 
Commissioner Salaries 30,000 33,300 
Continuing Education 2,925 1,844 
Contractual Services-Maintenance of Mains/Distribution System 38,570 23,589 
Dues 6,958 7, 115 
Insurance 48,724 46,058 
Maintenance of Mains/Distribution System Expenses 293,741 176,744 
Miscellaneous· 6,530 3,676 
Office Supplies and Expense 91,416 62,280 
Operating Labor 653,173 573,148 
Other Interest Expense 2,789 1,036 
Payroll Taxes 69, 117 67,876 
Professional Services 60,637 54,866 
Purchased Power 411,125 382,630 
Regulatory Fees 7,458 6,770 
Employee Benefits 187,255 198,392 
Retirement Expense 322,903 397,032 
Transportation Expense 20,428 27,110 
Utilities 31,894 28,870 
Depreciation Expense 773,056 737,034 

Total Operating Expenses $ 3,217,310 $ 2,973,081 

Net Operating Income s 323,520 $ 489,284 

Nonoperatlng Revenue (Expense): 
Investment Income $ 13,329 $ 9, 111 
Interest Expense (299,011) (295,753) 
Liquidated Damages Received 65,000 
Gain/Loss on Sale or Abandonment of Assets 1,032 2,912 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) $ (219,650) $ (283, 730) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions $ 103,870 $ 205,554 
Capital Contributions 47,460 104,906 

Change in Net Position $ 151,330 $ 310,460 

Net Position - (As Previously Staled) $ 8,024,932 $ 8,208,911 

Restatement - (GASS Statement 75) (494,439) 

Net Position - As Restated $ 8,024,932 $ 7,714,472 

Net Position $ 8,176,262 $ 8,024,932 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. Page 4 



HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

ST  ATEMENT  OF CASH  FLOWS

For  the  Years  Ended  December  31, 2018  and  2017

CASH  FLOWS  FROM  OPERATING  ACTMTIES

Receipts  from  Customers

Payments  to Suppliers

Payments  to Employees

Other  Receipts  (Payments)

Net  Cash  Provided  (Used)  by Operating  Activities

CASH  FLOWS  FROM  CAPIT  AL  AND

RELATED  FINANCING  ACTMTIES

Proceeds  from  Sale  of Capital  Assets

Purchase  of Capital  Assets  (lncluding  Work  In Process)

Principal  Paid  on Capital  Debt

Interest  Paid  on Capital  Debt

Note  Proceeds

Liquidated  Damages  Proceeds

Capital  Contributions

Net  Cash  Provided  (Used)  by Capital  and

Related  Financing  Activities

CASH  FLOWS  FROM  INVESTING  ACTMTIES

Interest  Received

Net  Cash  Provided  (Used)  by Investing  Activities

Net  Increase  (Decrease)  in Cash  and  Cash  Equivalents

Balances-Beginning  of  the  Year

Balances-End  of  the  Year

2018

$ 3,541,589

(1 ,417,933)

(809,264)

(18,396)

$ 1,295,996

4,402

(814,237)

(604,801)

(282,182)

269,235

65,000

49,060

$ (1,313,523)

13,467

13,467

(4,060)

847,597

843,537

2017

$ 3,462,266
(1 ,193,098)

(722,661)

7,238

$ 1,553,745

$ 4,358

(1,119,412)

(588,990)

(282,489)

476,733

83,306

5 (1 ,426,494)

8,956

8,956

136,207

711 ,390

847,597

Cash

Certificates  of Deposit

Restricted  Cash

Restricted  Certificates  of Deposit

Total  Cash  and Cash

Equivalents,  End of  Year

Balances

Per  December  31, 2018

Statement  of

Net  Position

$ 79,096

207,260

764,441

880,616

1,931,413

Balances

Per  Decemiber  31 2018

Statement  of

Cash  Flows

79,096

764,441

843,537

Cash

Certificates  of Deposit

Restricted  Cash

Restricted  Certificates  of Deposit

Total  Cash  and Cash

Equivalents,  End of  Year

Balances

Per  December  31, 2017

Statement  of

Net  Position

$ 57,704

217,160

789,893

870,327

1 ,935,084

Balances

Per  December  31 2017

Statement  of

Cash  Flows

57,704

789,893

847,597

(Continued)

See  accompanying  notes  to  the  basic  financial  statements. Page  5

HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from Customers $ 3,541,589 $ 3,462,266 
Payments to Suppliers (1,417,933) (1, 193,098) 
Payments to Employees (809,264) (722,661) 
Other Receipts (Payments) p8,396) 7,238 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 1,295,996 $ 1,553,745 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets $ 4,402 $ 4,358 
Purchase of Capital Assets (Including Work In Process) (814,237) (1, 119,412) 
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (604,801) (588,990) 
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (282, 182) (282,489) 
Note Proceeds 269,235 476,733 
Liquidated Damages Proceeds 65,000 
Capital Contributions 49,060 83,306 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and 
Related Financing Activities $ (1,313,523) $ (1,426,494) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest Received $ 13,467 $ 8,956 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities $ 13,467 $ 8,956 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ (4,060) $ 136,207 

Balances-Beginning of the Year 847,597 711,390 

Balances-End of the Year s 843,537 $ 847,597 

Cash 
Certificates of Deposit 
Restricted Cash 
Restricted Certificates of Deposit 

Total Cash and Cash 
Equivalents, End of Year 

Cash 
Certificates of Deposit 
Restricted Cash 
Restricted Certificates of Deposit 

Total Cash and Cash 
Equivalents, End of Year 

Balances 
Per December 31, 2018 

Statement of 
Net Position 

$ 79,096 
207,260 
764,441 
880,616 

$ 1,931,413 

Balances 
Per December 31, 2017 

Statement of 
Net Position 

$ 57,704 
217, 160 
789,893 
870,327 

$ 1,935,084 

Balances 
Per December 31, 2018 

Statement of 
Cash Flows 

$ 79,096 

764,441 

$ 843,537 

Balances 
Per December 31, 2017 

Statement of 
Cash Flows 

$ 57,704 

789,893 

$ 847,597 

(Continued) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. Page 5 



HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

ST  ATEMENT  OF CASH  FLOWS

For  the  Years  Ended  December  31, 2018  and  2017

RECONCILIATION  OF OPERATING  INCOME  (LOSS)  TO  NET  CASH

PROVIDED  (USED)  BY  OPERATING  ACTMTIES

Operating  Income  (Loss)

Adjustments  to Reconcile  Operating  Income  to Net  Cash

Provided  (Used)  by Operating  Activities:

Cash  Flows  Reported  in Other  Categories:

Depreciation  Expense

Pension  & OPEB  Expense

Change  in Assets  and  Liabilities:

Receivables,  Net

Other  Receivables

Inventories

Prepaid  Expenses

Accounts  Payable

Accrued  Expenses

Customer  Meter  Deposits  Payable

Net  Cash  Provided  by Operating  Activities

2018

$ 323,520

773,056

221 ,295

(26,511)

17,370

(15,981)

(10,455)

17,554

(16,227)

12,375

$ 1,295,996

Restated

2017

$ 489,284

737,034

317,345

6,113

(11,237)

(16,279)

(2,171)

16,364

11 ,231

6,061

$ 1,553,745

SCHEDULE  OF  NONCASH  INVESTING,  CAPITAL,  AND  FINANCING  ACTMTIES

At  December  31, 2018  and  2017,  Henry  County  Water  District  #2 had  $0 and  $224,360,  respectively,  of

capitalized  expenditures  for  construction  in accounts  payable  on the  Statement  of Net  Position.  At

December  31, 2018  and  2017,  Henry  County  Water  District  #2 had  $0 and  $4,500,  respectively,  of capital

assets  in accounts  payable  on the  Statement  of Net  Position.

See  accompanying  notes  to  the  basic  financial  statements. Page  6

HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 

2018 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Restated 
2017 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Cash Flows Reported in Other Categories: 

Depreciation Expense 
Pension & OPEB Expense 

Change in Assets and Liabilities: 
Receivables, Net 
Other Receivables 
Inventories 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Customer Meter Deposits Payable 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

$ 323,520 $ 489,284 

773,056 737,034 
221,295 317,345 

(26,511) 6, 113 
17,370 (11,237) 

(15,981) (16,279) 
(10,455) (2,171) 

17,554 16,364 
(16,227) 11,231 

12,375 6,061 

$ 1,295,996 $ 1,553,745 

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Henry County Water District #2 had $0 and $224,360, respectively, of 
capitalized expenditures for construction in accounts payable on the Statement of Net Posjtion. At 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, Henry County Water District #2 had $0 and $4,500, respectively, of capital 
assets in accounts payable on the Statement of Net Position. 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. Page 6 



HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

December  3al, 2018  and  20"l7

NOTE  1-  DESCRIPTION  OF ENTITY  AND  SIGNIFICANT  ACCOUNTING  POLICIES

Description  of entity:  Henry  County  Water  District  #2 is a rural  water  company  serving  approximately  6,300  customers  in

the Kentucky  counties  of Henry,  Trimble,  Carroll,  01dham  and Shelby,  and is regulated  by the Public  Service  Commission
of the Commonwealth  of Kentucky.  The  water  district  was  formed  under  the laws  of Henry  County  through  its Fiscal  Court
and began  operations  in 4 965.

In evaluating  how  to define  Henry  County  Water  District  #2 for  financial  reporting  purposes,  management  has considered
all potential  component  units.  The decision  to include  a potential  component  unit in the reporting  entity  was made  by

applying  the criteria  set forth  in GAAP.  The basic-but  not the only-criterion  for including  a potential  component  unit
within  the reporting  entity  is the governing  body's  ability  to exercise  oversight  responsibility.  The most significant
manifestation  of this ability  is financial  interdependency.  Other  manifestations  of the ability  to exercise  oversight
responsibility  include,  but are not limited  to, the selection  of governing  authority,  the designation  of management,  the ability
to significantly  influence  operations  and accountability  for  fiscal  matters.  The other  criterion  used to evaluate  potential

component  units  for inclusion  or exclusion  from the reporting  entity  is the existence  of special  financing  relationships,
regardless  of whether  the District  is able  to exercise  oversight  responsibilities.  Based  upon  the application  of these  criteria,
the District  has no component  units.

A summary  of the District's  significant  accounting  policies  follows:

Basis  of  presentation  and  accounting:  As stated  in Kentucky  Revised  Statutes  (KRS)  278.015,  "any  water  district  shall
be a public  utility  and shall be subject  to the jurisdiction  of the Public  Service  Commission."  In KRS 278.220,  it is outlined
that  the Public  Service  Commission  may  establish  a system  of accounts  to be kept  by the utilities  subject  to its jurisdiction,
and may  prescribe  the manner  in which  such  accounts  shall  be kept. The  financial  statements  of the District  are prepared
in accordance  with generally  accepted  accounting  principles  (GAAP).  The District  applies  all relevant  Governmental
Accounting  Standards  Board  (GASB)  pronouncements.

All activities  of the District  are accounted  for within  a single  proprietary  (enterprise)  fund.  Proprietary  funds  are used to
account  for operations  that  are (a) financed  and operated  in a manner  similar  to private  business  enterprises  where  the
intent  of the governing  body  is that  the cost  (expenses,  including  depreciation)  of providing  goods  or services  to the general
public  on a continuing  basis  be financed  or recovered  primarily  through  user  charges;  or (b) where  the governing  body  has
decided  that  periodic  determination  of revenues  earned,  expenses  incurred,  and/or  net income  is appropriate  for  capital
maintenance,  public  policy,  management  control,  accountability,  or other  purposes.

Proprietary  funds  utilize  the accrual  basis  of accounting.  Under  the accrual  basis  of accounting,  revenues  are recognized
when  earned  and expenses  are recorded  when  the liability  is incurred  or economic  asset  used.

The accounting  and financial  reporting  treatment  applied  to the District  is determined  by its measurement  focus.  The
transactions  of the District  are accounted  for on a flow  of economic  resources  measurement  focus.  The accounting
objectives  of  this  measurement  focus  are the determination  of operating  income,  changes  in net position  (or cost  recovery),
financial  position,  and cash  flows.  With  this measurement  focus,  all assets  and all liabilities  associated  with  the operations
are included  on the statement  of net position.  Net position  (total  assets  plus deferred  outflows  net of total liabilities  and
deferred  inflows)  is segregated  into net investment  in capital  assets,  restricted;  and unrestricted  components.

Revenues  and  expenses:  Operating  revenues  and expenses  consist  of those  revenues  and expenses  that  result  from  the
ongoing  principal  operations  of the District.  Operating  revenues  consist  primarily  of charges  for services.  Non-operating
revenues  and expenses  consist  of  those  revenues  and  expenses  that  are related  to financing  and  investing  types  of activities
and result  from  nonexchange  transactions  or ancillary  activities.

The  District  adheres  to the use restrictions  established  by
restricted  and unrestricted  net position  is available.  The
unrestricted)  to use first.

Bond  Agreements  when  expenses  are incurred  for which  both
District  has no policy  defining  which  resources  (restricted  or
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Description of entity: Henry County Water District #2 is a rural water company serving approximately 6,300 customers in 
the Kentucky counties of Henry, Trimble, Carroll, Oldham and Shelby, and is regulated by the Public Service Commission 
of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The water district was formed under the laws of Henry County through its Fiscal Court 
and began operations in 1965. 

In evaluating how to define Henry County Water District #2 for financial reporting purposes, management has considered 
all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit In the reporting entity was made by 
applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. The basic -- but not the only -- criterion for including a potential component unit 
within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant 
manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight 
responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability 
to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The other criterion used to evaluate potential 
component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity Is the existence of special financing relationships, 
regardless of whether the District is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these criteria, 
the District has no component units. 

A summary of the District's significant accounting policies follows: 

Basis of presentation and accounting: As stated in Kentucky Revised Statutes (KRS) 278.015, 'any water district shall 
be a public utility and shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Service Commission." In KRS 278.220, it is outlined 
that the Public Service Commission may establish a system of accounts to be kept by the utilities subject to its jurisdiction, 
and may prescribe the manner in which such accounts shall be kept. The financial statements of the District are prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The District applies all relevant Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. 

All activities of the District are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. Proprietary funds are used to 
account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the 
intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general 
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the District is determined by its measurement focus. The 
transactions of the District are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. The accounting 
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes In net position (or cost recovery), 
financial position, and cash flows. With this measurement focus, all assets and all llabilities associated with the operations 
are included on the statement of net position. Net position (total assets plus deferred outflows net of total liabilities and 
deferred inflows) is segregated into net investment In capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted components. 

Revenues and expenses: Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from the 
ongoing principal operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Non-operating 
revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and investing types of activities 
and result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

The District adheres to the use restrictions established by Bond Agreements when expenses are incurred for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net position is available. The District has no policy defining which resources (restricted or 
unrestricted) to use first. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE 1-  DESCRIPTION  OF ENTITY  AND  SIGNIFICANT  ACCOUNTING  POLICIES  (Continued)

Property  and  equipment:  Property  and equipment  purchased  or constructed  is stated  at cost. Costs  associated  with hook
up fees are capitalized  as meters,  installations,  and services. Interest  related  to costs, and major  improvements,  renewals
and replacements  is capitalized  as a cost of the project. Depreciation  is computed  on the straight-line  basis over the
estimated  useful  lives of the related  assets. The range  of estimated  useful  lives by type of asset  is as follows:

- Structures  & Improvements
- Distribution  System
- Machinery  & Equipment

7-60 years
7-50 years
3-25 years

Construction  in process  represents  costs  related  to various  water  line extensions  being installed  by District  employees,  as
well as system  improvements.  Expenses  for maintenance  and repairs  that do not increase  the useful  life of the asset  are

charged  to operations  as they  are incurred.

As part of the rate increase  study  performed  by the Public  Service  Commission  (PSC) it was recommended  to the District
that the lives of distribution  system  assets  be extended  to reflect  recommendations  made by the PSC during  its review.

Depreciation  Expense  has been calculated  using  straight  line depreciation  as applied  to the assets'  historical  costs  over  the
revised  asset  lives.

: Inventories  of supplies  are valued  at the lower  of cost or market  on a first-in,  first-out  basis.

Bond  Discount  and Premium:  Bond discount  and premium  are amortized  over  the life of the bond issue.

Debt  Issuance  Costs:  Such costs  are expensed  as incurred.

Post  Employment  Benefits  Other  Than  Pensions:  For purposes  of measuring  the net OPEB liability,  deferred  outflows
of resources  and deferred  inflows  of resources  related to OPEB and OPEB  expense,  information  about  the fiduciary  net
position  of the Commonwealth  of Kentucky's  County  Employees'  Retirement  System  (CERS),  and additions  to/deductions
from CERS's  fiduciary  net position  have been determined  on the same  basis  as they are reported  by CERS.

Deferred  Outflows  and Deferred  Inflows:
assets  or liabilities;  revenues  or expenses.
periods.

Deferred  Outflows  of Resources  and Deferred  Inflows  of Resources  are not
Rather, they represent  resources  or the use of resources  related to future

Compensated  Absences:  See Note 1l  for the District's  policy  on vacation  and sick pay.

Income  Taxes:  Henry  County  Water  District  #2 is not subject  to income  taxes.

Contributed  Capital:  Under  the Governmental  Accounting  Standards  Board's  (GASB)  Statement  No. 33, Accounting  and
Financial  Reporting  for Nonexchange  Transactions,  the District  recognizes  capital contributions  as revenues,  in the
statement  of revenues,  expenses,  and changes  in fund net position. Capital  contributions  include  donated  property,  impact
fees, tap on fees and grants. Tap on fees and impact  fees of $47,460  and $87,230  were received  by the District  for the
years  ended December  31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  $17,676  from the Kentucky  Department  of Transportation  was
received  by the District  for the year  ended  December  31, 2017.

Net  Position:  Net position  comprises  the various  net earnings  from operating  and non-operating  revenues,  expenses,  and
contributions  of capital.  Net position is classified  in the following  three components:  net investment  in capital  assets,
restricted,  and unrestricted  net position. Net investment  in capital  assets  consists  of all capital  assets,  net of accumulated
depreciation  and reduced  by outstanding  debt  that is attributable  to the acquisition,  construction  and improvement  of those
assets;  debt related  to unspent  proceeds  or other restricted  cash and investments  is excluded  from the determination.
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued) 

Property and equipment: Property and equipment purchased or constructed is stated at cost Costs associated with hook 
up fees are capitalized as meters, installations, and services. Interest related to costs, and major improvements, renewals 
and replacements is capitalized as a cost of the project. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the related assets. The range of estimated useful lives. by type of asset is as follows: 

- Structures & Improvements 
- Distribution System 
- Machinery & Equipment 

7-60 years 
7-50 years 
3-25 years 

Construction in process represents costs related to various water line extensions being installed by District employees, as 
well as system improvements. Expenses for maintenance and repairs that do not increase the useful life of the asset are 
charged to operations as they are incurred. 

As part of the rate increase study performed by the Public Service Commission (PSC) it was recommended to the District 
that the lives of distribution system assets be extended to reflect recommendations made by the PSC during its review. 
Depreciation Expense has been calculated using straight line depreciation as applied to the assets' historical costs over the 
revised asset lives. 

Inventory: Inventories of supplies are valued at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out basis. 

Bond Discount and Premium: Bond discount and premium are amortized over the life of the bond issue. 

Debt Issuance Costs: Such costs are expensed as incurred. 

Pension: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky's County Employees' Retirement System (GERS), and additions to/deductions from CERS's fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CERS. 

Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net OPES liability, deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPES and OPES expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Commonwealth of Kentucky's County Employees' Retirement System (GERS), and additions to/deductions 
from CERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by GERS. 

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows: Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources are not 
assets or liabilities; revenues or expenses. Rather, they represent resources or the use of resources related to future 
periods. 

Compensated Absences: See Note 11 for the District's policy on vacation and sick pay. 

Income Taxes: Henry County Water District #2 is not subject to income taxes. 

Contributed Capital: Under the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASS) Statement No. 33, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, the District recognizes capital contributions as revenues, in the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position. Capital contributions include donated property, impact 
fees, tap on fees and grants. Tap on fees and impact fees of $47,460 and $87,230 were received by the District for the 
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. $17,676 from the Kentucky Department of Transportation was 
received by the District for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

Net Position: Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating and n_on-operating revenues, expenses, and 
contributions of capital. Net position is classified in the following three components: net investment in capital assets, 
restricted, and unrestricted net position. Net investment in capital assets consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of those 
assets; debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments is excluded frcim the determination. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)
December  31, 2018  and  2017

NOTE 1-  DESCRIPTION OF ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Restricted net position consists of net position for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as lenders,
grantors, contributors, laws, regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates.  Unrestricted net
position consists of all other net position not included in the above categories.

Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resu.lts could  differ
from  those  estimates.

Statement  of Cash Flows: For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, Henry County Water District #2 considers  all
highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less  when  purchased  to be cash
equivalents.

NOTE 2 -  DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS

The Bond and Interest Sinking Account was established with the original bond issue. Under  the bond resolution  which

established this account, it was provided that a minimum balance be maintained in this account as security  to the

bondholders. In order to attain the minimum balance, the monthly transfer to be made into the account for  the outstanding
bond  issues  is as follows:

one  sixth  (1/6)  of the next  semiannual  interest  payment

one  twelffh  (1/12)  of next  annual  principal  payment
monthly  transfer

The transfers and/or segregated deposits were sufficient to meet the total obligation outstanding on all iSsues  at December
31, 2018 and 2017. During the calendar year 2018 and 2017 sinking  fund  transfers were  not made  consistently.

Upon the issuance of the original bonds, a Depreciation Account was established to provide funds for  extraordinary repairs
and extensions to the system and/or make up any deficiency in the Bond and Interest Sinking  Account.  After  monthly
deposits are made into the Bond and Interest Account, monthly transfers are required  to be made  to the Depreciation

Account. The 1996 Bond Resolution (which was refinanced with the 2003 Bond Issue) required a monthly transfer of $3,845
to accumulate to a balance of $461,400. The 2001, 2003, 2010 and 2013 Bond Resolutions ratify and confirm  the creation
of the 1996 Depreciation Fund. The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Notes F13-039 and F15-014  require  the

establishmentofareplacementreserveaccount.  TheKlAnoteFl3-039requiresanannualtransferof$7,100toaccumulate
to a balance of $71,000. The KIA note F15-014 requires an annual transfer of $7,000, to accumulate to a balance  of
$70,000. AtDecember3l,20l8and2017,theDepreciationAccountwasfullyfunded.

NOTE  3 -  CASH  AND  INVESTMENTS

KRS 66.480 authorizes the District to invest in obligations of the United States and its agencies  and instrumentalities

including repurchase agreements, through sources including national and state banks chartered in Kentucky, obligations

and contracts for future delivery backed by the full faith of the United States or its Agency, certificates of deposit and interest
bearing accounts in institutions insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation and other investments described

therein provided that approved securities are pledged to secure those funds on deposit in an amount equal  to the amount
of those funds. The District may also invest in mutual funds  meeting the requirements  of the statute.

Custodial  Credit  Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to
it. As of December 31, 2018, and 2017 in accordance with District policy, $1,287,757 and $1,368, 139 respectively, of the
District's deposits were covered by federal depository insurance and $1,172,970 and $1,190,482, respectively, were
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution's agent or trust department in the District's name. Thus,
the District had no deposits that were  exposed  to custodial  credit  risk.
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Restricted net position consists of net posftion for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as lenders, 
grantors, contributors, laws, regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates. Unrestricted net 
position consists of all other net position not included in the above categories. 

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Statement of Cash Flows: For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, Henry County Water District #2 considers all 
highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents. 

NOTE 2 - DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS 

The Bond and Interest Sinking Account was established with the original bond issue. Under the bond resolution which 
established this account, it was provided that a minimum balance be maintained in this account as security to the 
bondholders. In order to attain the minimum balance, the monthly transfer to be made into the account for the outstanding 
bond issues is as follows: 

one sixth (1/6) of the next semiannual interest payment 
+ one twelfth (1/12) of next annual principal payment 
= monthly transfer 

The transfers and/or segregated deposits were sufficient to meet the total obligation outstanding on all issues at December 
31, 2018 and 2017. During the calendar year 2018 and 2017 sinking fund transfers were not made consistently. 

Upon the issuance of the original bonds, a Depreciation Account was established to provide funds for extraordinary repairs 
and extensions to the system and/or make up any deficiency in the Bond and Interest Sinking Account. After monthly 
deposits are made into the Bond and Interest Account, monthly transfers are required to be made to the Depreciation 
Account. The 1996 Bond Resolution (which was refinanced with the 2003 Bond Issue) required a monthly transfer of $3,845 
to accumulate to a balance of $461,400. The 2001, 2003, 2010 and 2013 Bond Resolutions ratify and confirm the creation 
of the 1996 Depreciation Fund. The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Notes F13-039 and F15-014 require the 
establishment of a replacement reserve account. The KIA note F13-039 requires an annual transfer of $7, 100 to accumulate 
to a balance of $71,000. The KIA note F15-014 requires an annual transfer of $7,000, to accumulate to a balance of 
$70,000. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Depreciation Account was fully funded. 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

KRS 66.480 authorizes the District to invest in obligations of the United States and its agencies and instrumentalities 
including repurchase agreements, through sources including national and state banks chartered in Kentucky, obligations 
and contracts for future delivery backed by the full faith of the United States or its Agency, certificates of deposit and interest 
bearing accounts in institutions insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation and other investments described 
therein provided that approved securities are pledged to secure those funds on deposit in an amount equal to the amount 
of those funds. The District may also invest in mutual funds meeting the requirements of the statute. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to 
it. As of December 31, 2018, and 2017 in accordance with District policy, $1,287,757 and $1,368, 139 respectively, of the 
District's deposits were covered by federal depository insurance and $1,172,970 and $1,190,482, respectively, were 
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution's agent or trust department in the District's name. Thus, 
the District had no deposits that were exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)
December  31, 2018  and  2017

NOTE  3 -  CASH  AND  INVESTMENTS  (Continued)

Custodial  Credit  Risk  (Continued)

At December  3al 2018  and 2017,  the District's  deposits  were  as follows:

December  31, 2018

Type  of  Deposits

Demand  Deposits

Time  & Savings

Total  Deposits

December  31, 2017

Type  of  Deposits

Demand  Deposits

Time  & Savings

Total  Deposits

Reconciliation  to Statement  of Net Position:

Unrestricted  Cash,  Including  Time  Deposits

Restricted  Cash,  Including  Time  Deposits

Less  Cash  on Hand

NOTE  4 -  RESTRICTED  ASSETS

Restricted  cash  and time  deposits  consist  of the following:

Debt  Service

Depreciation  Account

Customer  Deposits  & Impact  Charge  Escrow

Construction  Account

Total

Total  Bank

Balance

$ 18,471

2,442,257

$ 2,460,728

Total  Bank

Balance

$ 22,226

2,536,394

$ 2,558,620

Total  Carrying

Value

$ 18,471

1,912,442

$ 1,930,913

Total  Carrying

Value

$ 22,226
1,912,358

$ 1,934,584

December  31, 2018

286,356

1,645,057

(500)

1,930,913

December  31, 2018

$ 556,623

609,054

119,196

360,184

December  31, 2017

$ 274,864

1,660,220

(500)

$ 1,934,584

December  31, 2017

$ 503,532

608,892

150,547

397,249

1,645,057  $ 1 ,660,220

Restricted  receivables  consist  of the following:

Interest  Receivable

December  31, 2018

$ 730

December  31, 2017

$ 1,356

NOTE  5 -  CUSTOMER  ACCOUNTS  RECEIV  ABLE

Customer  Accounts  Receivable  has been  netted  with an Allowance  for Bad Debts  of $84,990  and $74,378  at December
31, 2018  and 2017,  respectively.  The  amount  provided  for  bad debts  represents  the portion  of the total  amounts  for  which
collection  is unlikely,  based  on historical  collection  data.

Estimated  unbilled  water  service  revenue  of $137,843  and $129,913  is included  in accounts  receivable  at December  31,
2018  and 2017,  respectively.
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Custodial Credit Risk (Continued) 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the District's deposits were as follows: 

December 31, 2018 

Type of Deposits 
Demand Deposits 
Time & Savings 

Total Deposits 

Total Bank Total Carrying 
Balance Value 

$ 18,471 $ 18,471 
2,442,257 1,912,442 

$, 2,460,728 $ 1,930,913 

December 31, 2017 

Type of Deposits 
Demand Deposits 
Time & Savings 

Total Deposits 

Total Bank Total Carrying 
Balance Value 

$ 22,226 $ 22,226 
2,536,394 1,912,358 

$ 2,558,620 $ 1,934,584 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position: 

Unrestricted Cash, Including Time Deposits 
Restricted Cash, Including Time Deposits 
Less Cash on Hand 

December 311 2018 December 31, 2017 

$ 286,356 $ 274,864 
1,645,057 1,660,220 

(500) (500) 
$ 1,930,913 $ 1,934,584 

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted cash and time deposits consist of the following: 

Debt Service 
Depreciation Account 
Customer Deposits & Impact Charge Escrow 
Construction Account 

Total 

Restricted receivables consist of the following: 

Interest Receivable 

NOTE 5- CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

December 31, 2018 December 311 2017 

$ 556,623 $ 503,532 
609,054 608,892 
119,196 150,547 
360,184 397,249 

$ 1,645,057 $ 1,660,220 

December 311 2018 December 311 2017 
$ 730 $ 1,356 

Customer Accounts Receivable has been netted with an Allowance for Bad Debts of $84,990 and $74,378 at December 
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The amount provided for bad debts represents the portion of the total amounts for which 
collection is unlikely, based on historical collection data. 

Estimated unbilled water service revenue of $137,843 and $129,913 is included in accounts receivable at December 31, 
2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Page 10 



HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

NOTES  TO  BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31,  2018  and  20"l7

NOTE  6 -  OTHER  RECEIV  ABLES

At December  31, 2018  the District  recorded  other  receivables  of $306  from  an employee  of Henry  County  Water  District.

At December  31, 2017  the District  recorded  other  receivables  of $17,676  from Kentucky  Department  of  Transportation.

NOTE  7 -  CAPIT  AL  ASSETS

Capital  asset  activity  for  the years  ended  December  31, 2018  and 2017,  was as follows:

Land & Land Rights

Structures  & Improvements

Distribution  System

Machinery  & Equipment

Construction  in Process

Totals  at Historical  Cost

Less:  Accumulated  Depreciation

Structures  & Improvements

Distribution  System

Machinery  & Equipment

Total  Accumulated  Depreciation

Capital  Assets,  Net

Land  & Land Rights

Structures  & Improvements

Distribution  System

Machinery  & Equipment

Construction  in Process

Totals  at Historical  Cost

Less:  Accumulated  Depreciation

Structures  & Improvements

Distribution  System

Machinery  & Equipment

Total  Accumulated  Depreciation

Capital  Assets,  Net

Balance  at

January  1, 2018

192,776

29 695,518

2,729,157

1793,212

338,626

34,7  49,289

(14,940,883)

(1 ,441,662)

(i2l6,859)

(17,599,404)

17,149,885

Balance  at

January  1, 2017

176,617

27,188,322

2,676,737

1,611,124

1 ,994,071

33,646,871

(14,507,895)

(1 ,402,497)

(1 ,147,695)

(17,058,087)

16,588,784

Additions

565,214

75,652

181,791

390 600

$ 1213,257

$ (637,936)

(39,818)

(95,302)

$ (773,056)

440,201

Additions

$ 16,159

2,685,754

52,420

200 693

i ,046,468

$ 4,001,494

$ (611,546)

(39,165)

(86,323)

$ (737,034)

$ 3,264,460

Disposals

Balance  at

December  31 2018

(15,551)

(623,380)

$ (638,931)

192,776

30,260,732

2,804,809

1 ,959,452

105,846

35,323,615

12181

12,181

(15,578,E119)

(1 ,481 ,480)

(1,299,980)

(18,360,279)

$ (626,750) 16,963,336

Disposals

Balance  at

December  31, 2017

(178,558)

(18,605)

(2,701  ,913)

$ (2,899,076)

178,558

17,159

195,717

$ (2,703,359)

192,776

29,695,518

2,729,157

1,793,212

338,626

34,7  49,289

(14,940,883)

(1 ,441 ,662)

(1,216,859)

(17,599,404)

17,149,885

Included  under  the District's  capital  assets were  $5,079,426  and $4,971,696  of fully  depreciated assets, at December  31,
2018  and 2017,  respectively.  Land  and land rights  and construction  in process  are capital  assets  not being  depreciated.

Depreciation  expense  aggregated  $773,056  and $737,034  in 2018  and 2017,  respectively.
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 6- OTHER RECEIVABLES 

At December 31, 2018 the District recorded other receivables of $306 from an employee of Henry County Water District. 

At December 31, 2017 the District recorded other receivables of $17 ,676 from Kentucky Department of Transportation. 

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 
January 1, 2018 Additions Disposals December 31, 2018 

Land & Land Rights $ 192,n6 $ s $ 192,776 
Structures & Improvements 29,695,518 565,214 30,260,732 
Distribution System 2,729,157 75,652 2,804,809 
Machinery & Equipment 1,793,212 181,791 (15,551) 1,959,452 
Construction in Process 338,626 390,600 (623,380l 105,846 

Totals at Historical Cost s 34,749,289 s 1,213,257 $ (638,931) $ 35,323,615 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Structures & Improvements $ (14,940,883) s (637,936) $ $ (15,578,819) 
Distribution System (1,441,662) (39,818) (1,481,480) 
Machinery & Equipment (1,216,859) (95,302) 12,181 (1,299,980) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation s (17,599,404) $ (n3,0S6) $ 12,181 $ (18,360,279) 

Capital Assets, Net $ 17,149,885 $ 440,201 $ (626,750) $ 16,963,336 

Balance at Balance at 
January 1, 2017 Additions Disposals December 31, 2017 

Land & Land Rights $ 176,617 s 16,159 $ $ 192,776 
Structures & Improvements 27,188,322 2,685,754 (178,558) 29,695,518 
Distribution System 2,676,737 52,420 2,729,157 
Machinery & Equipment 1,611,124 200,693 (18,605) 1,793,212 
Construction In Process 1,994,071 1,046,468 (2,701,913l 338,626 

Totals at Historical Cost s 33,646,871 $ 4,001,494 $ (2,899,076) $ 34,749,289 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Structures & Improvements $ (14,507,895) s (611,546) $ 178,558 $ (14,940,883) 
Distribution System (1,402,497) (39, 165) (1,441,662) 
Machinery & Equipment (1, 147,695) (86,323) 17, 159 (1,216,859) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation $ (17,058,087) $ (737,034) $ 195,717 $ (17,599,404) 

Capital Assets, Net $ 16,588,784 $ 3,264,460 $ (2,703,359) $ 17,149,885 

Included under the District's capital assets were $5,079,426 and $4,971,696 of fully depreciated assets, at December 31, 
2018 and 2017, respectively. Land and land rights and construction in process are capital assets not being depreciated. 

Depreciation expense aggregated $773,056 and $737,034 in 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE  8 -  CUSTOMER  DEPOSITS/ESCROW

Customer  deposits  are collected  upon installation  of water  service.  This amount  is to be refunded  to the customer  upon

discontinuation  of service  (affer  the customer's  bill has been paid in full) or one year  pending  a satisfactory  payment  record.

Deposits  received  from customers  are held in an interest-bearing  account  (which  is included  in the financial  statements  as

restricted  cash). Records  are maintained  which  detail  the accrued  interest  on each customer's  deposit  based  on the current
annual  rate. Accrued  interest  is paid annually  and when  the deposit  is refunded.

NOTE  9 -  DEFERRED  OUTFLOWS  OF RESOURCES

In 2013, Henry County  Water  District  adopted  GASB 65, Items Previously  Reported  as Assets  and Liabilities.  Under

GASBS  No. 65 a consumption  of net position  by the District  that is applicable  to a future  period is reported  as a deferred

outflow  of resources.

The following  is a summary  of the District's  deferred  outflows  of resources  associated  with early  debt retirement:

Difference  between  the reacquisition  price

and the net carrying  amount  of the old bond

issues  refunded.

2010 Bond Issue

2013 Bond Issue

December  31, 2018

116,210

61,808

178,018

December  31, 2017

128,605

66,502

195,107

Amounts  reported  as deferred  outflows  of resources  due to the advance  refunding  of old bond ISSUES will be amortized  over
the shorter  of the life of the old or new debt  and recognized  in interest  expense  as follows:

Year  Ended  December  31, 2018:
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

2024-2028

2029-2032

Year  Ended  December  31, 2017:

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023-2027

2028-2032

Deferred

Outflows  of

Resources

$ 17,089
17,089

17,089
17,089

17,089
77,706

14,8ei7

$ 178,018

Deferred

Outflows  of

Resources

$ 17,089
17,089

17,089

17,089

17,089

85,447

24,215

$ 195, 107

The District's  deferred  outflows  of resources  attributable  to the District's  employee  pension  plan are detailed  in Note 16.
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 8 - CUSTOMER DEPOSITS/ESCROW 

Customer deposits are collected upon installation of water service. This amount is to be refunded to the customer upon 
discontinuation of service (after the customer's bill has been paid in full) or one year pending a satisfactory payment record. 
Deposits received from customers are held in an interest-bearing account (which is included in the financial statements as 
restricted cash). Records are maintained which detail the accrued interest on each customer's deposit based on the current 
annual rate. Accrued interest is paid annually and when the deposit is refunded. 

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

In 2013, Henry County Water District adopted GASS 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Under 
GASBS No. 65 a consumption of net position by the District that is applicable to a future period is reported as a deferred 
outflow of resources. 

The following is a summary of the District's deferred outflows of resources associated with early debt retirement: 

Difference between the reacquisition price 
and the net carrying amount of the old bond 
issues refunded. 

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 

2010 Bond Issue 
2013 Bond Issue 

$ 

$ 

116,210 
61,808 

178,018 

$ 

$ 

128,605 
66,502 

195, 107 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources due to the advance refunding of old bond issues will be amortized over 
the shorter of the life of the old or new debt and recognized in interest expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2018: 

Year Ended December 31, 2017: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

2024-2028 
2029-2032 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023-2027 
2028-2032 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 
$ 17,089 

17,089 
17,089 
17,089 
17,089 
77,706 
14 867 

$ 178,018 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 
$ 17,089 

17,089 
.17,089 

17,089 
17,089 
85,447 
24,215 

$ 195 107 

The District's deferred outflows of resources attributable to the District's employee pension plan are detailed in Note 16. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018  and  2017

NOTE  10 -  LONG-TERM  DEBT

As of December  31, 2018  and 2017,  the long-term  debt  payable  consisted  of the following:

Notes  Payable:

Kentucky  Infrastructure  Authority  represents  a 20-year  loan

secured  by water  revenues.  Interest  is charged  at 1.75%  per
annum.  In addition,  a loan servicing  fee of O.25%  of the annual
outstanding  loan balance  will be payable  to the authority  as
part of each interest  payment.  Original  loan amount  was

$2,222,244.  Semi-annual  payments  with  final  maturity
December  1, 2037.

Kentucky  Infrastructure  Authority  represents  a 20-year  loan

secured  by water  revenues.  Interest  is charged  at 1.75%  per
annum.  In addition,  a loan servicing  fee  of O.25%  of the annual

outstanding  loan balance  will be payable  to the authority  as

part of each interest  payment.  Original  loan amount  was

$2,153,041.  Semi-annual  payments  with  final  maturity

December  i2034.

Total  Notes  Payable

Current  Portion

Noncurrent  Portion

Total  Notes  Payable

December  31, 2018

2,134,084

3,914,357

1,780,273

December  31, 2017

1,953,009

1,875,914

3,828,923

Bonds  Payable:

2010 B Bond Issue, original  issue amount  of $5,663,000,
secured  by water  revenues.  Interest  is charged  3.20%  to

4.33%  per  annum.  Final  maturity  is January  12028.

Kentucky  Rural Water  Finance  Corporation  Public  Projects

Refunding  Revenue  Bonds  (Flexible  Term  Program)  Series

2013B,  original  issue  (District  Share)  $2,760,000,  secured  by
water  revenues.  Interest  is charged  at the rates  of 2.30%  -
3.5%  per  annum.  Final  maturity  is February  1, 2032.

Total  Bonds  Payable

Current  Portion

Noncurrent  Portion

Total  Bonds  Payable

Unamortized  Bond  Premium

Total  Bonds  Payable  Including

Unamortized  Bond  Premium  and Discount

Accrued  CompensatedAbsences:

Accrued  Compensated  Absences  (All Current)

3,229,000

1,725,000

4,954,000

442,000

4,512,000

4,954,000

3,604

4,957,604

3,545,000

1,830,000

5,375,000

421 ,000

4 ,954,000

5 ,375,000

3,988

5,378,988

26,967
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the long-term debt payable consisted of the following: 

Notes Payable: 
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 20-year loan 
secured by water revenues. Interest is charged at 1. 75% per 
annum. In addition, a loan servicing fee of 0.25% of the annual 
outstanding loan balance will be payable to the authority as 
part of each interest payment Original loan amount was 
$2,222,244. Semi-annual payments with final maturity 
December 1, 2037. 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority represents a 20-year loan 
secured by water revenues. Interest is charged at 1. 75% per 
annum. In addition, a loan servicing fee of 0.25% of the annual 
outstanding loan balance will be payable to the authority as 
part of each interest payment. Original loan amount was 
$2, 153,041. Semi-annual payments with final maturity 
December 1, 2034. 

Total Notes Payable 

Current Portion 
Noncurrent Portion 

Total Notes Payable 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2, 134,084 

1780273 

3 914,357 

192,904 
3 721 453 
3,914 357 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,953,009 

1 875 914 

3,828,923 

177,978 
3 650 945 
3,828,923 

Bonds Payable: 

2010 B Bond Issue, original issue amount of $5,663,000, 
secured by water revenues. Interest is charged 3.20% to 
4.33% per annum. Final maturity is January 1, 2028. $ 3,229,000 $ 3,545,000 

Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation Public Projects 
Refunding Revenue Bonds (Flexible Term Program) Series 
20136, original issue (District Share) $2, 760,000, secured by 
water revenues. Interest is charged at the rates of 2.30% - 
3.5% per annum. Final maturity is February 1, 2032. 1,725,000 1 830,000 

Total Bonds Payable $ 4 954 000 $ 5 375,000 

Current Portion $ 442,000 $ 421,000 
Noncurrent Portion 4 512,000 4 954 000 

Total Bonds Payable $ 4,954,000 $ 5,375,000 

Unamortized Bond Premium 3 604 3 988 
Total Bonds Payable Including 

Unamortized Bond Premium and Discount $ 4,957 604 $ 5,378 988 

Accrued Compensated Absences: 

Accrued Compensated Absences (All Current) $ 25 913 $ 26,967 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE  10 -  LONG-TERM  DEBT  (Continued)

Kentucky  Infrastructure  Authority  -  Federally  ASSisted  Drinking  Water  Revolving  Loan  Fund

On April 6, 2018, Henry  County  Water  District  #2 closed  a loan in the amount  of $2,222,244  with Kentucky  Infrastructure
Authority  secured  by water  revenues. Interest  is charged  at 1.75%  per annum. In addition,  a loan servicing  fee of O.25%
of the annual  outstanding  balance  will be payable  to the authority  as part of each interest  payment. Loan proceeds  were

used to construct  a new I-million-gallon  composite  storage  tank. Final maturity  is December  1, 2037.

Kentucky  Infrastructure  Authority  -  Federally  Assisted  Drinking  Water  Revolving  Loan  Fund

On October  6, 2014 Henry  County  Water  District  closed  a loan in the amount  of $2,153,041  with Kentucky  Infrastructure
Authority  secured  by water  revenues.  Interest  is charged  at 1.75%  per annum.  In addition,  a loan servicing  fee of O.25%
of the annual  outstanding  loan balance  will be payable  to the authority  as part of each interest  payment.  Proceeds  from
this loan were  used to install  approximately  24,000  linear  feet of water  main. Final maturity  is December  1, 2034.

Kentucky  Rural  Water  Finance  Corporation  Public  Projects  Revenue  Bonds,  Series  2010 B

On May 13, 2010 Henry County  Water  District  entered  into a $5,663,000  bond agreement  with Kentucky  Rural Water
Finance  Corporation.  The proceeds  of the bonds  were used to refund the District's  then outstanding  Refunding  Revenue
Bonds, Series 1998 (principal,  interest,  and 1% redemption  premium  as required).  Final maturity  on the 2010 issue  is

January  1, 2028.

Bonds  Payable  Kentucky  Rural  Water  Finance  Corporation  Flexible  Term  Finance  Program  Series  2013B

On February  27, 2013, Henry  County  Water  District  #2 issued $2,760,000,  Series  20"l3B Kentucky  Rural Water  Finance
Corporation Public  Projects Refunding  Revenue  Bonds  with interest  rates of 2.30%  - 3.55% to advance  refund  $370,000
Series  2001 D and $2,333,000  Series  2003 revenue  bonds  outstanding.  The 2001 D Series  was originally  issued  at 2.4% to
4.75% per annum. The 2003 Series  was issued at 4.06%  to 4.81% per annum. The refunded  bonds  were  redeemed  on

February  27, 2013 at a price  equal  to I 00% of the principal  amounts  of the refunded  bonds  outstanding  at that  date. Bond
issuance  costs  were  $61,389  which  were  expensed  when  incurred.

As a result  of the advance  refunding,  the District  reduced  its total debt  service  requirements  by $476,674,  which  resulted  in
an economic  gain (difference  between  the present  value of the debt service  payments  on the old and new debts)  of
$356,023.  Final maturity  on the 2013 issue is February  1, 2032.

Changes  in Long-term  Debt

The following  is a summary  of changes  in long-term  debt  for the years  ended  December  31, 2018 and 2017.

December31,  2018
Balance  at

January  1, 2018 Additions

Notes Payable
Bonds Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences

Total Enterprise Fund Debt

3,828,923  $ 269,235
5,375,000

26,967  7,848

9,230,890  $ 277,083

Retirements

$ 183,801

421  ,000

8,902

$ 613,703

Balance  at

December  31,  2018

Current

Portion

3,914,357  $ 192,904
4,954,000  442,000

25,913  25,913

8,894,270  $ 660,817

December  31, 2017

Notes  Payable

Bonds  Payable

Accrued  Compensated  Absences

Total  Enterprise  Fund  Debt

Balance  at

January  1, 2017

3,446,180

5,870,000

23,734

9,339,914

Additions Retirements

$ 476,733 $ 93,990
495,000

3,233

$ 479,966 $ 588,990

Balance  at

December  31,  2017

3,828,923

5,375,000

26,967

9,230,890

Current

Portion

$ 177,978

421  ,000

26,967

$ 625,945
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority- Federally Assisted Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund 

On April 6, 2018, Henry County Water District #2 closed a loan in the amount of $2,222,244 with Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority secured by water revenues. Interest is charged at 1. 75% per annum. In addition, a loan servicing fee of 0.25% 
of the annual outstanding balance will be payable to the authority as part of each interest payment. Loan proceeds were 
used to construct a new 1-million-gallon composite storage tank. Final maturity is December 1, 2037. 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority - Federally Assisted Drinking Waler Revolving Loan Fund 

On October 6, 2014 Henry County Water District closed a loan in the amount of $2,153,041 with Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority secured by water revenues. Interest is charged at 1. 75% per annum. In addition, a loan servicing fee of 0.25% 
of the annual outstanding loan balance will be payable to the authority as part of each interest payment. Proceeds from 
this loan were used to install approximately 24,000 linear feet of water main. Final maturity is December 1, 2034. 

Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation Public Projects Revenue Bonds. Serles 2010 B 

On May 13, 2010 Henry County Water District entered into a $5,663,000 bond agreement with Kentucky Rural Water 
Finance Corporation. The proceeds of the bonds were used to refund the District's then outstanding Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1998 (principal, interest, and 1% redemption premium as required). Final maturity on the 2010 issue is 
January 1, 2028. 

Bonds Payable Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation Flexible Tenn Finance Program Serles 20138 

On February 27, 2013, Henry County Water District #2 issued $2,760,000, Series 20138 Kentucky Rural Water Finance 
Corporation Public Projects Refunding Revenue Bonds with interest rates of 2.30% - 3.55% to advance refund $370,000 
Series 2001 D and $2,333,000 Series 2003 revenue bonds outstanding. The 2001 D Series was originally issued at 2.4% to 
4. 75% per annum. The 2003 Series was issued at 4.06% to 4.81 % per annum. The refunded bonds were redeemed on 
February 27, 2013 at a price equal to 100% of the principal amounts of the refunded bonds outstanding at that date. Bond 
issuance costs were $61,389 which were expensed when incurred. 

As a result of the advance refunding, the District reduced its total debt service requirements by $476,674, which resulted in 
an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debts) of 
$356,023. Final maturity on the 2013 issue is February 1, 2032. 

Changes in Long-term Debt 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

December 31, 2018 
Balance at Balance at Current 

Janua!}'. 1, 2018 Additions Retirements December 31, 2018 Portion 

Notes Payable $ 3,828,923 $ 269,235 $ 183,801 $ 3,914,357 $ 192,904 
Bonds Payable 5,375,000 421,000 4,954,000 442,000 
Accrued Compensated Absences 26,967 7,848 8,902 ,25,913 25,913 

Total Enterprise Fund Debt $ 9,230,890 $ 277,083 $ 613,703 $ 8,894,270 $ 660,817 

December 31, 2017 
Balance at Balance at Current 

Janua!}'. 1, 2017 Additions Retirements December 31, 2017 Portion 

Noles Payable $ 3,446,180 s 476,733 $ 93,990 $ 3,828,923 $ 177,978 
Bonds Payable 5,870,000 495,000 5,375,000 421,000 
Accrued Compensated Absences 23,734 3,233 26,967 26,967 

Total Enterplise Fund Debt $ 9,339,914 $ 479,966 s 588,990 $ 9,230,890 $ 625,945 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE 10 -  LONG-TERM  DEBT  (Continued)

The annual  requirements  for all long-term  debt  outstanding  at December  31, 2018, are as follows:

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024-2028

2029-2033

2034-2037

Note

Payable

$ 192,904

196,295

199,746

203,257

206,829

i ,089,971

1,189,188

636,167

$ 3,914,357

Note  Payable

Interest

$ 67,661

64,270

60 821

57,309

53,737

212,860

113,641

21,937

$ 652,236

Service

Fee

$ 9 666

9,182

8,689

8187

7,677

30,409

16,234

3,134

$ 93,178

Bonds

$ 442,000

458,000

480 000

496,000

518,000

2,110,000

450,000

Bond

Interest

$ 188,189

173  020

155,394

136,914

117,762

286,244

31 ,567

$ 4,954,000  5 1,089,090

Trustee

Fees

$ 900

900

900

900

900

4,050

1 ,350

Total  Principal,  Interest,

Trustee  Fee  and

Servicing  Fee

$ 901 ,320

901 ,667

905,550

902,567

904,905

3,733,534

1 ,801 ,980

661 ,238

$ 10,712,761

The annual  requirements  for all long-term  debt outstanding  at December  31, 2017, are as follows:

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023-2027

2028-2032

2033-2037

Note

Payable

$ 177,978

181,107

184,290

187,530

190,826

1 ,005,634

1,097174

804,384

$ 3,828,923

Note  Payable

Interest

Service

Fee

$ 9,461

9,015

8 560

8,097

7,626

30,776

17,697

4,642

$ 95,874  $

$1,953,009  of Notes  Payable  were  not closed  at December  31, 2017.
above.

66,231

63,103

59,91g

56,681

53,384

215,415

123,875

32,503

671,111

Bonds

$ 421,000

442,000

458,000

480,000

496,000

2,483,000

595,000

Bond

Interest

202,296

188,189

173,020

155 394

136,914

383,796

51 777

Trustee

Fees

$ 900

900

goo

goo

900

4,500

1 800

5,375,000  $ 1,291,386  $

Total  Principal,  Interest,

Trustee  Fee and

Servicing  Fee

$ 877,866

884,314

884,689

888,602

885,650

4,123,121

1 887 323

841 ,529

s q1 ,273,09410,800

An estimated  amortization  schedule  for this is included

NOTE 11-  COMPENSATED  AB8ENCES

Vacation  and sick pay are considered  expenditures  in the year  earned.

Vacation  Days

All full time employees  earn one week  of vacation  time at the beginning  of the first  whole  calendar  year  of employment  and
one additional  day per year  up to the maximum  of four  weeks.  Only two weeks  of unused  vacation  time may be carried
over  to the next year. If there  is still any vacation  leave remaining,  the employee  will be paid straight  time for that portion
not carried over in January  of the following  year. If an employee  has accumulated  vacation  leave at time of retirement  or
resigning,  he may have the option  to use the leave  time or receive  payment  at his/her  regular  rate. A terminated  employee
will be compensated  for any accrued  vacation  time.

At December  31, 2018 and 2017, a liability  for accrued  vacation  was recorded  in the amount  of $25,913  and $26,967,
respectively.

Sick  and Personal  Days

All full time employees  earn 4 sick  day per month. An employee  may carry  over  any sick  leave  accrued  during  the year  that
was not used, without  limit. If and when the employee  retires or resigns,  there  will be no pay for unused  sick leave.  Full
time personnel  earn 4 personal  days per year  with no carry-over  or pay for any unused  time.

At December  31, 2018 and 2017,  the District  had an unrecorded  sick pay liability  to its employees  of $129,013  and $119,298,
respectively.  The estimated  liabilities  include  required  salary  related  payments.
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 10- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

The annual requirements for all long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2018, are as follows: 

Total Principal, interest, 
Note Note Payable Service Bond Trustee Trustee Fee and 

Pa�able Interest Fee Bonds Interest Fees Servlcln� Fee 
2019 $ 192,904 $ 67,661 $ 9,666 $ 442,000 $ 188, 189 $ 900 $ 901,320 
2020 196,295 64,270 9,182 458,000 173,020 900 901,667 
2021 199,746 60,821 8,689 480,000 155,394 900 905,550 
2022 203,257 57,309 8,187 496,000 136,914 900 902,567 
2023 206,829 53,737 7,677 518,000 117,762 900 904,905 
2024-2028 1,089,971 212,860 30,409 2, 110,000 286,244 4,050 3,733,534 
2029-2033 1,189,188 113,641 16,234 450,000 31,567 1,350 1,801,980 
2034-2037 636,167 21,937 3,134 661,238 

$ 3,914,357 $ 652,236 $ 93,178 s 4,954,000 s 1,089,090 $ 9,900 s 10,712,761 

The annual requirements for all long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2017, are as follows: 

Total Principal, lntares� 
Note Note Payable Service Bond Trustee Trustee Fee and 

Pa�able Interest Fee Bonds Interest Fees Servicing Fee 
2018 $ 177,978 s 66,231 $ 9,461 s 421,000 $ 202,296 $ 900 $ 877,866 
2019 181,107 63,103 9,015 442,000 1 BB, 189 900 884,314 
2020 184,290 59,919 8,560 458,000 173,020 900 884,689 
2021 187,530 56,681 8,097 480,000 155,394 900 888,602 
2022 190,826 53,384 7,626 496,000 136,914 900 885,650 
2023-2027 1,005,634 215,415 30,776 2,483,000 383,796 4,500 4,123,121 
2028-2032 1,097,174 123,875 17,697 595,000 51,777 1,600 1,887,323 
2033-2037 604,384 32,503 4,642 841,529 

$ 3,828,923 $ 671, 111 $ 95,874 $ 5,375,000 $ 1,291,386 $ 10,800 $ 11,273,094 

$1,953,009 of Notes Payable were not closed at December 31, 2017. An estimated amortization schedule for this is included 
above. 

NOTE 11 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Vacation and sick pay are considered expenditures in the year earned. 

Vacation Days 

All full time employees earn one week of vacation time at the beginning of the first whole calendar year of employment and 
one additional day per year up to the maximum of four weeks. Only two weeks of unused vacation time may be carried 
over to the next year. If there is still any vacation leave remaining, the employee will be paid straight time for that portion 
not carried over in January of the following year. If an employee has accumulated vacation leave at time of retirement or 
resigning, he may have the option to use the leave time or receive payment at his/her regular rate. A terminated employee 
will be compensated for any accrued vacation time. 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, a liability for accrued vacation was recorded in the amount of $25,913 and $26,967, 
respectively. 

Sick and Personal Days 

All full time employees earn 1 sick day per month. An employee may carry over any sick leave accrued during the year that 
was not used, without limit. If and when the employee retires or resigns, there will be no pay for unused sick leave. Full 
time personnel earn 4 personal days per year with no carry-over or pay for any unused time. 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the District had an unrecorded sick pay liability to its employees of $129,013 and $119,298, 
respectively. The estimated liabilities include required salary related payments. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE  12 -  FUND EQUITY-  RESTRICTED  NET POSITION

Restricted  for  Capital  Projects:

Monies  Reserved  for  Future  System  Improvements

Total  Restricted  for  Capital  Projects

Restricted  for  Debt  Service:

2010  and  2013  Bond  Issues  & KIA  Notes  Payable

Cash

Add: Accrued  Interest  Receivable

Less: Accrued  Interest  Payable

Total  Restricted  for Debt  Service

December  31, 2018 December 31 20al7

360184  $

360,184  $

397,249

397,249

1165,677  $

730

(5,708)

1,160,699  $

1,112,424

1 ,356

(5,584)

1,108,196

NOTE  13  -  BAD  DEBT  EXPENSE

Water  revenue  charges  have been netted with an estimated  bad debt expense  of $10,791 and $14,862  at December  31,
2018  and 2017, respectively.

NOTE  I 4 -  INTEREST  EXPENSE

Interest  expense  incurred  for the years  ended December  31, 2018 and 2017 was $301,800  and $310,587,  respectively.
Capitalized  interest  in 2018 and 2017 was $0 and $13,798,  respectively.

NOTE  15  -  INSURANCE  AND  RELATED  ACTMTIES

The District  is exposed  to various  forms  of loss of assets  associated  with the risks  of fire, personal  liability,  theft, vehicular
accidents,  errors and omissions,  fiduciary  responsibility,  etc.  Each of these risks is covered  through  the purchase  of

commercial  insurance.  The District  is also subject  to the risks associated  with employee  injury.  These  risks are covered

through  premiums  paid to Kentucky  Employers'  Mutual  Insurance,  a commercial  insurance  company.

NOTE 16 - COUNTY  EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM  - NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION  PLAN
AND  POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)

The  Henry  County  Water  District  #2 participates  in the Commonwealth  of Kentucky's  County  Employees'  Retirement  System
(CERS)  for non-hazardous  employees.

Under  the provision  of Kentucky  Revised  Statute  ("KRS")  Section  61.645,  the Board  of Trustees  of the Kentucky  Retirement
System administers  CERS and has the authority  to establish  and amend benefit  provisions.  Under  the provisions  of
Kentucky  Revised  Statute  ("KRS")  Section  61.701,  the KRS Board administers  the Kentucky  Retirement  Systems  Insurance
Fund.  The statutes  provide  for an insurance  fund to provide  group hospital  and medical  benefits  to retirees  drawing  a

benefit  from the pension  funds  administered  by KRS, which includes  CERS.

The Kentucky  Retirement  System  issues  a publicly  available  financial  report  that  includes  financial  statements  and required
supplementary  information  for CERS's  pension  and insurance  funds. Additionally,  the Kentucky  Retirement  System  issues
publicly  available  financial  reports  that include  the Schedules  of Employer  Allocations  and Pension  amounts,  and the
Schedules  of Employer  Allocations  of Post Employment  Benefits  Other  Than Pension  amounts,  by employer.  The most
recent  financial  reports,  dated  June 30, 2018, may be obtained  on-line  as follows:

*  KentuckyRetirementSystemsAuditReport-2018
https://apps.auditor.ky.gov/Public/AuditReports/Archive/201  8KRSfinancialaudit.pdf

*  Kentucky  Retirement  Systems  Schedule  of Employer  Allocations  and Pension  Amounts  - Audit  Report  2018
GASB  68
https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/201  8%20Audited%20Reports/201  8KRSEmployerAllocationPensionAudit.pdf

Kentucky  CERS GASB 68 Actuarial  Report
https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/201  8%20GASB%2068%20and%2075%20Actuary%20Reports/GASB68  Actuaria
I InformationCERSFY201  8.pdf
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 · 

NOTE 12 - FUND EQUITY- RESTRICTED NET POSITION 

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 
Restricted for Capital Projects: 

Monies Reserved for Future System Improvements 
Total Restricted for Capital Projects 

Resbicted for Debt Service: 
2010 and 2013 Bond Issues & KIA Notes Payable 

Cash 
Add: Accrued Interest Receivable 
Less: Accrued Interest Payable 

Total Restricted for Debt Service 

NOTE 13 - BAD DEBT EXPENSE 

$ 
$ 

s 

$ 

360,184 $ 397,249 
360,184 ....;$..---....;; 39;,;7,,; ,2;..; 4;... 9 

1,165,677 s 1,112,424 
730 1,356 

(5,708) (5,584) 
1,160,699 $ 1,108,196 ========== 

Water revenue charges have been netted with an estimated bad debt expense of $10,791 and $14,862 at December 31, 
2018 and 2017, respectively. 

NOTE 14 - INTEREST EXPENSE 

Interest expense incurred for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $301,800 and $310,587, respectively. 
Capitalized interest in 2018 and 2017 was $0 and $13,798, respectively. 

NOTE 15 - INSURANCE AND RELATED ACTIVITIES 

The District is exposed to various forms of loss of assets associated with the risks of fire, personal liability, theft, vehicular 
accidents, errors and omissions, fiduciary responsibility, etc. Each of these risks is covered through the purchase of 
commercial insurance. The District is also subject to the risks associated with employee injury. These risks are covered 
through premiums paid to Kentucky Employers' Mutual Insurance, a commercial insurance company. 

NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN) 

The Henry County Water District #2 participates in the Commonwealth of Kentucky's County Employees' Retirement System 
(GERS) for non-hazardous employees. 

Under the provision of Kentucky Revised Statute ("KRS") Section 61.645, the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement 
System administers GERS and has the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Under the provisions of 
Kentucky Revised Statute (" KRS') Section 61. 701, the KRS Board administers the Kentucky Retirement Systems Insurance 
Fund. The statutes provide for an insurance fund to provide group hospital and medical benefits to retirees drawing a 
benefit from the pension funds administered by KRS, which includes GERS. 

The Kentucky Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for CERS's pension and insurance funds. Additionally, the Kentucky Retirement System issues 
publicly available financial reports that include the Schedules of Employer Allocations and Pension amounts, and the 
Schedules of Employer Allocations of Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pension amounts, by employer. The most 
recent financial reports, dated June 30, 2018, may be obtained on-line as follows: 

• Kentucky Retirement Systems Audit Report - 2018 
https://apps.auditor. ky.gov/Public/Audit_ Reports/Archive/2018KRSfinancialaudil. pdf 

• Kentucky Retirement Systems Schedule of Employer Allocations and Pension Amounts - Audit Report 2018 - 
GASB68 
https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/2018%20Audited%20Reports/2018KRSEmployerAllocationPensionAudit.pdf 

• Kentucky GERS GASB 68 Actuarial Report 
https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/2018%20GASB%2068%20and%2075%20Actuary%20Reports/GASB68_Actuaria 
l_lnformation_ CERS_FY2018.pdf 
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HENRY COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL  ST ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION PLAN
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

* KentuckyRetirementSystemsSchedulesofEmployerAIlocationsandOPEBAmountsbyEmployer-AuditReport
2018  -  GASB  75

https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/2018  %20Audited  %20Reports/2018KRS-OPEBAudit.pdf

Kentucky  CERS  GASB  75 Actuarial  Report

https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/2018%20GASB%2068%20and%2075%20Actuary%20Reports/GASB75  Actuaria
IlnformationCERSFY20l  8.pdf

Basis  of  Accounting  - CERS's  financial  statements  are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  Plan  member

contributions  are recognized  in the period in which contributions  are due. Employer  contributions  to the plan are recognized

when due and the employer  has made a formal commitment  to provide the contributions.  Benefits and refunds  are

recognized  when due and payable  in accordance  with terms of the plan. Premium payments  are recognized  when  due  and

payable in accordance  with the terms of the plan. Administrative  and investment  expenses  are recognized  when incurred.

Method  Used  to Value Investments/Investment  Objectives  - Investments  of the plan are reported at fair value.  Fair

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer  a liability in an orderly transaction  between

market  participants  at the measurement  date. Short-term  investments  are reported at cost, which approximates  fair  value.

Purchases  and sales of securities  are recorded on a trade-date  basis. Interest income is recorded on the accrual  basis.

Dividends  are recorded on the dividend date. Gain (loss) on investments  includes KRS' gains and losses on investments

bought and sold as well as held during the fiscal year. Investment  returns are recorded net of investment  fees.

The investment  objectives  of the portfolios are to produce results that exceed the stated goals over both short-term  and
long-term periods.

* Shorter-Term  (5 years and less): The returns of the particular  asset classes of the managed  funds of the Systems,

measured on an annual basis, should exceed the return achieved by a policy benchmark  portfolio composed  of
comparable  unmanaged  market indices.

@ Medium-Term  (5 to 30 years): The returns of the particular  asset classes of the managed funds of the Systems,
measured  on a rolling year basis should exceed the returns achieved by a policy benchmark  portfolio  composed  of

comparable  unmanaged  market  indices and perform above the median of an appropriate  peer universe, if there is
one.

* Longer-Term: The total assets of the Systems  should achieve a return of 6.25% for CERS pension and insurance

plans. This is measured over 30 to 40 years which exceeds the actuarially required rate of return while  also
exceeding  the return achieved  by its total fund  benchmark.

Target  Asset  Allocation  Board Policy as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 was as follows:

2 €)18 2 €)17

Combined  Equity 35.00% 50.80%

Combined  Fixed  Income 24.00% 14.00%

Priwte  Equity 10.OO% 10.  00%

Absolute  Return 10.  00% 10.OO%

Real  Return IO.OO% 8.00%

Real  Estate 5.00% 5.00%

Global  Bonds 4.00% 0. 00%

Cash 2. 00% 2.20%

100.OO% 100.OO%

Total fund return for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was 8.57% and 13.47% respectively.
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NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued) 

• Kentucky Retirement Systems Schedules of Employer Allocations and OPEB Amounts by Employer - Audit Report 
2018 - GASB 75 . 
https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/2018%20Audiled%20Reports/2018KRS-OPEBAudit.pdf 

• Kentucky CERS GASB 75 Actuarial Report 
https://kyret.ky.gov/Employers/GASB/2018%20GASB%2068%20and%2075%20Actuary%20Reports/GASB75_Actuaria 
l_lnlormation_ CERS_FY2018.pdf 

Basis of Accounting - CERS's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member 
contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are due. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized 
when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with terms of the plan. Premium payments are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Administrative and investment expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Method Used to Value Investments/Investment Objectives - Investments of the plan are reported at fair value. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
marl<et participants at the measurement date. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. 
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis. 
Dividends are recorded on the dividend date. Gain (loss) on investments includes KRS' gains and losses on investments 
bought and sold as well as held during the fiscal year. Investment returns are recorded net of investment fees. 

The investment objectives of the portfolios are to produce results that exceed the stated goals over both short-term and 
long-term periods. 

• Shorter-Term (5 years and less): The returns of the particular asset classes of the managed funds of the Systems, 
measured on an annual basis, should exceed the return achieved by a policy benchmark portfolio composed of 
comparable unmanaged market indices. 

• Medium-Term (5 to 30 years): The returns of the particular asset classes of the managed funds of the Systems, 
measured on a rolling year basis should exceed the returns achieved by a policy benchmark portfolio composed of 
comparable unmanaged market indices and perform above the median of an appropriate peer universe, if there is 
one. 

• Longer-Term: The total assets of the Systems should achieve a return of 6.25% for GERS pension and insurance 
plans. This is measured over 30 to 40 years which exceeds the actuarially required rate of return while also 
exceeding the return achieved by its total fund benchmark. 

Target Asset Allocation Board Policy as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 was as follows: 

2018 2017 
Combined Equity 35.00% 50.80% 
Combined Fixed Income 24.00% 14.00% 
Private Equity 10.00% 10.00% 
Absolute Return 10.00% 10.00% 
Real Return 10.00% 8.00% 
Real Estate 5.00% 5.00% 
Global Bonds 4.00% 0.00% 
Cash 2.00% 2.20% 

100.00% 100.00% 

Total fund return for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was 8.57% and 13.47% respectively. 
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NOTE  16 - COUNTY  EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM  - NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION  PLAN
AND  POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

Pension  Plan  Description  -  CERS  is a cost-sharing  multiple-employer  defined  benefit  pension  plan that  covers  all regular
full-time  members  employed  in non-hazardous  and hazardous  positions  of each  participating  county,  city, and school  board,
and any additional  eligible  local agencies  electing  to participate  in CERS  along  with hazardous  duty position  of each
participating  county,  city, or school  board,  any  additional  eligible  local  agencies  electing  to participate  in CERS.  The plan
provides  for retirement,  disability,  and death benefits  to plan members.  Retirement  benefits  may be extended  to
beneficiaries  of plan members  under  certain  circumstances.  Prior  to July  1, 2009,  COLAs  were  provided  annually  equal  to
the percentage  increase  in the annual  average  of the consumer  price index  for all urban  consumers  for the most  recent
calendar  year, not  to exceed  5% in any plan year. After  July  1, 2009,  the COLAs  were  limited  to 1.5%. No COLA  has been
granted  since  July  1, 2011. The  Henry  County  Water  District  #2 participates  in the non-hazardous  plan.

Benefits  provided  -  CERS  provides  retirement,  health  insurance,  death  and disability  benefits  to Plan employees  and
beneficiaries.  Employees  are vested  in the plan  affer  five  years'  service.  For  retirement  purposes,  employees  are grouped
into  three  tiers,  based  on hire  date:

Tier  'l  Participation  date

Unreduced  retirement

Reduced  retirement

Before  September  1, 2008

27 years  service  or 65 years  old

At least  5 years  service  and 55 years  old

Tier  2 Participation  date
Unreduced  retirement

Reduced  retirement

September  1, 2008  -  December  31, 2013
At least  5 years  service  and 65 years  old

or age  57+ and sum of service  years  plus  age equal  87
At least  10 years  service  and 60 years  old

Tier  3 Participation  date
Unreduced  retirement

Reduced  retirement

After  December  31, 2013
At least  5 years  service  and 65 years  old

or age 57+ and sum  of service  years  plus  age equal  87
Not available

Retirement  is based  on a factor  of the number  of years'  service  and hire date  multiplied  by the average  of the highest  five
years'  earnings.  Reduced  benefits  are based  on factors  of both of these  components.  Participating  employees  become
eligible  to receive  the health  insurance  benefit  after  at least  180 months  of service.  Death  benefits  are provided  for both

death  after  retirement  and death  prior  to retirement.  Death  benefits  after  retirement  are $5,000  in lump  sum.  Five years'
service  is required  for  death  benefits  prior  to retirement  and the employee  must  have  suffered  a duty-related  death.  The

decedent's  beneficiary  will receive  the higher  of the normal  death  benefit  and $10,000  plus  25%  of the decedent's  monthly
final  rate of pay and any dependent  child  will receive  10%  of the decedent's  monthly  final rate of pay up to 40%  for all
dependent  children.  Five  years'  service  is required  for  nonservice-related  disability  benefits.

During  the 2018  legislative  session,  House  Bill 185  was  enacted,  which  updated  the benefit  provisions  for  active  members

who  die in the line of duty.  Benefits  paid to the spouses  of deceased  members  have  been increased  from  25% of the
member's  final  rate of pay to 75%  of the member's  average  pay. If the member  does  not have  a surviving  spouse,  benefits

paid  to surviving  dependent  children  have  been  increased  from 10%  of the member's  final  pay rate to 50%  of average  pay
for  one child,  65%  of average  pay  for  two  children,  or 75% of average  pay for  three  children.

There  were  no changes  in benefit  terms  during  the year  ended  June  30, 2017.

Contributions  - Participating  employers  are required  to contribute  at an actuarially  determined  rate. Per Kentucky  Revised

Statute  Section  78.545(33),  normal  contribution  and past  service  contribution  rates  shall  be determined  by the Board  on the

basis  of an annual  valuation  last  preceding  the July  1 of a new  biennium.  The Board  may  amend  contribution  rates  as of

the  first  day of July  of the second  year  of a biennium,  if it is determined  on the basis  of a subsequent  actuarial  valuation  that

amended  contribution  rates  are necessary  to satisfy  requirements  determined  in accordance  with  actuarial  bases  adopted

by the Board.  For the fiscal  years  ended  June  30, 2018  and 2017  participating  non-hazardous  employers  contributed

19.  1 8% and 1 8.68%,  respectively,  of each  employee's  creditable  compensation.  The  actuarially  determined  rates  set by

the Board  for  the fiscal  years  ended  June  30, 2018  and 2017  were  19.  1 8% and 1 8.88%,  respectively.  Administrative  costs
of KRS are financed  through  employer  contributions  and investment  earnings.
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NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 
AND POST -EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued) 

Pension Plan Description - CERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all regular 
full-time members employed in non-hazardous and hazardous positions of each participating county, city, and school board, 
and any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in CERS along with hazardous duty position of each 
participating county, city, or school board, any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in CERS. The plan 
provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may be extended to 
beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Prior to July 1, 2009, COLAs were provided annually equal to 
the percentage increase in the annual average of the consumer price index for all urban consumers for the most recent 
calendar year, not to exceed 5% in any plan year. After July 1, 2009, the COLAs were limited to 1.5%. No COLA has been 
granted since July 1, 2011. The Henry County Water District #2 participates in the non-hazardous plan. · 

Benefits provided - GERS provides retirement, health insurance, death and disability benefits to Plan employees and 
beneficiaries. Employees are vested in the plan after five years' service. For retirement purposes, employees are grouped 
into three tiers, based on hire date: 

Tier 1 Participation date 
Unreduced retirement 
Reduced retirement 

Tier 2 Participation date 
Unreduced retirement 

Reduced retirement 

Tier 3 Participation date 
Unreduced retirement 

Reduced retirement 

Before September 1, 2008 
27 years service or 65 years old 
At least 5 years service and 55 years old 

September 1, 2008 - December 31, 2013 
At least 5 years service and 65 years old 
or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87 
At least 10 years service and 60 years old 

After December 31, 2013 
At least 5 years service and 65 years old 
or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87 
Not available 

Retirement is based on a factor of the number of years' service and hire date multiplied by the average of the highest five 
years' earnings. Reduced benefits are based on factors of both of these components. Participating employees become 
eligible to receive the health insurance benefit after at least 180 months of service. Death benefits are provided for both 
death after retirement and death prior to retirement. Death benefits after retirement are $5,000 in lump sum. Five years' 
service is required for death benefits prior to retirement and the employee must have suffered a duty-related death. The · 
decedent's beneficiary will receive the higher of the normal death benefit and $10,000 plus 25% of the decedent's monthly 
final rate of pay and any dependent child will receive 10% of the decedent's monthly final rate of pay up to 40% for all 
dependent children. Five years' service is required for nonservice-related disability benefits. 

During the 2018 legislative session, House Bill 185 was enacted, which updated the benefit provisions for active members 
who die in the line of duty. Benefits paid to the spouses of deceased members have been increased from 25% of the 
member's final rate of pay to 75% of the member's average pay. If the member does not have a surviving spouse, benefits 
paid to surviving dependent children have been increased from 10% of the member's final pay rate to 50% of average pay 
for one child, 65% of average pay for two children, or 75% of average pay for three children. 

There were no changes in benefit terms during the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Contributions - Participating employers are required to contribute at an actuarially detenmined rate. Per Kentucky Revised 
Statute Section 78.545(33), normal contribution and past service contribution rates shall be detenmined by the Board on the 
basis of an annual valuation last preceding the July 1 of a new biennium. The Board may amend contribution rates as of 
the first day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that 
amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted 
by the Board. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 participating non-hazardous employers contributed 
19. 18% and 18.68%, respectively, of each employee's creditable compensation. The actuarially determined rates set by 
the Board for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were 19.18% and 18.88%, respectively. Administrative costs 
of KRS are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings. 

Page 18 



HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2
NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018  and  2017

NOTE  16 - COUNTY  EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM  - NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION  PLAN
AND  POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

Non-hazardous  employer  contributions  for the year  ended  June  30, 2018,  of $19.18%  were  allocated  14.48%  to CERS's
pensionfundand4.70%toCERS's(healthinsurance).  Non-hazardousemployercontributionsfortheyearendedJune30,
2017,  of 18.68%  were  allocated  13.95%  to CERS's  pension  fund and 4.73%  to CERS'  OPEB  (health  insurance)  fund,
respectively.

For  the fiscal  year  ended  June  30, 2018  and 2017,  plan members  who  began  participating  prior  to September  1, 2008,  were
required  to contribute  5% non-hazardous,  of their  annual  creditable  compensation.  These  members  were  classified  in the
Tier  4 structure  of benefits.  Plan members  who  began  participating  on, or after,  September  1, 2008  and before  January  1,
2014,  were  required  to contribute  a total  of 6% non-hazardous,  of their  annual  creditable  compensation.  These  members
were  classified  in the Tier  2 structure  of benefits.  Five percent  of the contribution  was  deposited  to the member's  account
while  the 1 % was  deposited  to an account  created  for the payment  of health  insurance  benefits  under  26 USC Section

401(h)  in the Pension  Fund (see  Kentucky  Administrative  Regulation  105 KAR 1:420E).  Interest  is paid each  June  30 on
members'  accounts  at a rate  of 2.5%.

If a member  terminates  employment  and applies  to take  a refund,  the member  is entitled  to a full refund  of contributions  and
interest;  however,  for plan members  who  began  participating  on, or after, September  1, 2008,  the 1% contribution  to the
401(h)  account  is non-refundable  and is forfeited.

Plan members  who  began  participating  on, or after,  January  1, 2014,  were  required  to contribute  to the Cash  Balance  Plan.

These  members  were  classified  in the Tier  3 structure  of benefits.  The Cash Balance  Plan is known  as a hybrid  plan

because  it has characteristics  of both  a defined  benefit  plan and a defined  contribution  plan. Members  in the plan contribute

a set  percentage  of their  salary  each  month  to their  own account.  Non-hazardous  members  contribute  5%, of their  annual
creditable  compensation  and an additional  1% to the health  insurance  fund  which  is not credited  to the member's  account
and is not refundable.  The  employer  contribution  rate is set annually  by the Board  based  on an actuarial  valuation.  The

employer  contributes  a set  percentage  of the member's  salary.  Each  month,  when  employer  contributions  are received,  an
employer  pay credit  is deposited  to the  member's  account.  A member's  account  is credited  with  a 4% (non-hazardous)  and
employer  pay  credit.  The  employer  pay  credit  represents  a portion  of the employer  contribution.

Interest  is paid into the Tier  3 member's  account.  The  account  currently  earns  4% interest  credit  on the member's  account
balance  as of June  30'h of the previous  year. The  member's  account  may  be credited  with  additional  interest  if the system's
five-year  Geometric  Average  Net Investment  Return  (GANIR)  exceeded  4%.  If the member  was  actively  employed  and

participating  in the  fiscal  year,  and if the  systems'  GANIR  for  the previous  five  years  exceeds  4%,  then  the member's  account
will be credited  with  75%  of the amount  of the returns  over  4% on the account  balance  as of June  30'h of the previous  year
(Upside  Sharing  Interest).  It is possible  that  one  system  in KRS may  get  an Upside  Sharing  Interest,  while  one  may  not.

Methods  and  Assumptions  Used  in Calculation  of  Actuarially  Determined  Contributions  (Pension  Plan)

Per the Kentucky  Retirement  System's  2018 Comprehensive  Annual  Financial  Report,  the actuarially  determined
contribution  rates  effective  for fiscal  year  ending  2018  are calculated  as of June  30, 2017.  Based  on the June  30, 2017

actuarial  valuation  report,  the actuarial  methods  and assumptions  used to calculate  these  contribution  rates  are as follows:
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Non-hazardous employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018, of $19.18% were allocated 14.48% to CERS's 
pension fund and 4. 70% to CERS's (health insurance). Non-hazardous employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 
2017, of 18.68% were allocated 13.95% to CERS's pension fund and 4.73% to GERS' OPEB (health insurance) fund, 
respectively. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, plan members who began participating prior to September 1, 2008, were 
required to contribute 5% non-hazardous, of their annual creditable compensation. These members were classified in the 
Tier 1 structure of benefits. Plan members who began participating on, or after, September 1, 2008 and before January 1, 
2014, were required to contribute a total of 6% non-hazardous, of their annual creditable compensation. These members 
were classified in the Tier 2 structure of benefits. Five percent of the contribution was deposited to the member's account 
while the 1% was deposited to an account created for the payment of health insurance benefits under 26 USC Section 
401(h) in the Pension Fund (see Kentucky Administrative Regulation 105 KAR 1:420E). Interest is paid each June 30 on 
members' accounts at a rate of 2.5%. 

If a member terminates employment and applies to take a refund, the member is entitled to a full refund of contributions and 
interest; however, for plan members who began participating on, or after, September 1, 2008, the 1 % contribution to the 
401(h) account is non-refundable and is forfeited. 

Plan members who began participating on, or after, January 1, 2014, were required to contribute to the Cash Balance Plan. 
These members were classified in the Tier 3 structure of benefits. The Cash Balance Plan is known as a hybrid plan 
because it has characteristics of both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Members in the plan contribute 
a set percentage of their salary each month to their own account. Non-hazardous members contribute 5%, of their annual 
creditable compensation and an additional 1% to the health insurance fund which is not credited to the member's account 
and is not refundable. The employer contribution rate is set annually by the Board based on an actuarial valuation. The 
employer contributes a set percentage of the member's salary. Each month, when employer contributions are received, an 
employer pay credit is deposited to the member's account. A member's account is credited with a 4% (non-hazardous) and 
employer pay credit. The employer pay credit represents a portion of the employer contribution. 

Interest is paid into the Tier 3 member's account. The account currently earns 4% interest credit on the member's account 
balance as of June 301h of the previous year. The member's account may be credited with additional interest if the system's 
five-year Geometric Average Net Investment Return (GANIR) exceeded 4%. If the member was actively employed and 
participating in the fiscal year, and if the systems' GANIR for the previous five years exceeds 4 %, then the member's account 
will be credited with 75% of the amount of the returns over 4% on the account balance as of June 30'h of the previous year 
(Upside Sharing Interest). It is possible that one system in KRS may get an Upside Sharing Interest, while one may not. 

Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculation of Actuarially Determined Contributions (Pension Plan) 

Per the Kentucky Retirement System's 2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the actuarially determined 
contribution rates effective for fiscal year ending 2018 are calculated as of June 30, 2017. Based on the June 30, 2017 
actuarial valuation report, the actuarial methods and assumptions used to calculate these contribution rates are as follows: 
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NOTE  16 -  COUNTY  EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM  - NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION  PLAN
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Item

CERS

June  30, 2018

Non-Hazardous/Hazardous

CERS

June  30, 2017

Non-Hazardous/Hazardous

Determined  by the  Actuarial

Valuation  as of:

Actuarial  Cost  Method:

Asset  Valuation  Method:

Amortization  Method:

Amortization  Period:

Investment  Return:

Inflation:

Payroll  Growth:

Mortality:

June  30, 2016

Entry  Age  Normal

20%  of  the  difference  between  the

market  value  of assets  and  the

expected  actuarial  value  of assets

is recognized.

Level  Percent  of Pay

27 Years,  Closed

7.50%

3.25%

4.00%,  average

RP-2000  Combined  Mortality  Table,

projected  to 2013  with  Scale  BB

(set  back  1 year  for  females)

June  30, 2016

Entry  Age  Normal

20%  of the  difference  between  the

market  value  of  assets  and  the

expected  actuarial  value  of assets

is recognized.

Level  Percent  of Pay

28 Years,  Closed

7.50%

3.25%

4.00%,  average

RP-2000  Combined  Mortality  Table,

projected  to 2013  with  Scale  BB

(set  back  I year  for  females)

Actuarial  Methods  and  Assumptions  Used  in Calculation  of  the  Actuarially  Determined  Total  Pension  Liability  and
Net  Pension  Liability

The total pension liability is based on the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 performed by Gabriel Roeder Smith <GRS).
The  total pension  liability, net pension  liability, and sensitivity  information  as of June  30, 2018  were  based  on an actuarial
valuation  date  of June  30, 2017. The  total  pension  liability  was rolled-forward  from  the valuation  date  (June  30, 2017)  to
the plan's  fiscal  year  ending  June  30, 2018,  using  generally  accepted  actuarial  principles.

There  have  been no changes  in actuarial  assumptions  since  June  30, 2017. The  actuarial  assumptions  are:

Inflation
Salary  Increases

Investment  Rate  of Return

2. 30%
3. 05%

6.25%

However,  during  the 2018  legislative session,  House  Bill 185  was  enacted,  which  updated  the benefit  provisions  for  active

members  who  die in the line of duty. Benefits paid  to the spouses  of deceased  members  have  been increased  from  25%
of the member's  final  rate of pay to 75% of the member's  average  pay  If the member  does  not have  a surviving  spouse,

benefits paid to surviving  dependent  children  have  been increased  from 10% of the member's  final pay rate to 50% of
average  pay for one  child,  65%  of average  pay  for  two  children,  or 75%  of average  pay  for  three  children.  The  Total  Pension
Liability  as of June  30, 2018  is determined  using  these  updated  benefit  provisions.
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Item 

Determined by the Actuarial 
Valuation as of: 

Actuarial Cost Method: 

Asset Valuation Method: 

Amortization Method: 

Amortization Period: 

Investment Return: 

Inflation: 

Payroll Growth: 

Mortality: 

CERS 
June 30, 2018 

Non-Hazardous/Hazardous 

June 30, 2016 

Entry Age Normal 

20% of the difference between the 
market value of assets and the 
expected actuarial value of assets 
is recognized. 

Level Percent of Pay 

27 Years, Closed 

7.50% 

3.25% 

4.00%, average 

RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table, 
projected to 2013 with Scale BB 
(set back 1 year for females) 

CERS 
June 30, 2017 

Non-Hazardous/Hazardous 

June 30, 2016 

Entry Age Normal 

20% of the difference between the 
market value of assets and the 
expected actuarial value of assets 
is recognized. 

Level Percent of Pay 

28 Years, Closed 

7.50% 

3.25% 

4.00%, average 

RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table, 
projected to 2013 with Scale BB 
(set back 1 year for females) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used In Calculation of the Actuarially Determined Total Pension Liability and 
Net Pension Uability 

The total pension liability is based on the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 performed by Gabriel Roeder Smith (GRS). 
The total pension liability, net pension liability, and sensitivity information as of June 30, 2018 were based on an actuarial 
valuation date of June 30, 2017. The total pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date (June 30, 2017) to 
the plan's fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, using generally accepted actuarial principles. 

There have been no changes in actuarial assumptions since June 30, 2017. The actuarial assumptions are: 

Inflation 
Salary Increases 
Investment Rate of Return 

2.30% 
3.05% 
6.25% 

However, during the 2018 legislative session, House Bill 185 was enacted, which updated the benefit provisions for active 
members who die in the line of duty. Benefits paid to the spouses of deceased members have been increased from 25% 
of the member's final rate of pay to 75% of the member's average pay. If the member does not have a surviving spouse, 
benefits paid to surviving dependent children have been increased from 10% of the member's final pay rate to 50% of 
average pay for one child, 65% of average pay for two children, or 75% of average pay for three children. The Total Pension 
Liability as of June 30, 2018 is determined using these updated benefit provisions. 
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NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE 16 - COUNTY  EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM  - NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION  PLAN
AND  POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

Actuarial  Methods  and  Assumptions  Used  in Calculation  of  the  Actuarially  Determined  Total  Pension  Liability  and

Net  Pension  Liability  (Continued)

The mortality  table used for active members  is RP-2000  Combined  Mortality  Table projected  with Scale BB to 2013
(multiplied  by 50% for males  and 30% for females).  For healthy  retired  members  and beneficiaries,  the mortality  table  used
is the RP-2000  Combined  Mortality  Table  projected  with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back  for one year  for  females).  For disabled
members,  the RP-2000  Combined  Disabled  Mortality  Table  projected  with Scale  BB to 2013 (set-back  four  years  for males)

is used for the period after  disability  retirement.

Pension  Liabilities,  Pension  Expense,  and  Deferred  Oufflows  of  Resources  and  Deferred  Inflows  of  Resources
Related  to the County  Employee  Retirement  System  Pension

At December  31, 2018, and 2017 the District  reported  a liability  of $2,012,785  and $1,997,207,  respectively  for its
proportionate  share  of the net pension  liability. The net pension  liability  for CERS  was measured  as of June 30, 2018, and
2017  and was based on the actual  liability  of the employees  and former  employees  relative  to the total liability  of the system
as determined  by an actuarial  valuation  as of those  dates. The District's  proportion  of the net pension  liability  was based
on a projection  of the District's  long-term  share  of contributions  to the pension  plan relative  to the projected  contributions  of

all participating  employers,  actuarially  determined.  At June 30, 2018, and 2017 the District's  proportion  was O.033049  and
0.034121  percent,  respectively,  which  is a decrease  of O.001072%  and O.000730%  for the years  ended  June 30, 2018 and
June  30, 2017, respectively.

The District's  total payroll  for the calendar  year  ended  December  31, 2018 was $866,880.  Contributions  to the CERS  were
based  on $836,880  (eligible  gross  wages).  The total employer  pension  contributions  for  the calendar  year  ended  December
31, 2018 were $126,841.

The District's  total payroll  for the calendar  year  ended  December  31, 20"l7 was $827,099.  Contributions  to the CERS  were
based  on $787,500  (eligible  gross  wages).  The total employer  pension  contributions  for the calendar  year  ended  December
31, 2017 were  $110,735.

All contributions  were  made  as required.

The District's  contribution  for the County  Employees'  Retirement  System's  year(s)  ended December  31, 2018, and 2017
was O.033049  and O.034121 percent,  respectively,  of the System's  total contribution  requirements  for all employers.

For the years  ended December  31, 2018, and December  31, 2017, the District  recognized  pension  expense  of $322,903
and $397,032,  respectively.  At December  31, 2018 and 2017 the District  reported  deferred  outflows  of resources  and
deferred  inflows  of resources  related  to CERS pensions  from the following  sources:

Difference  Between  Expected  and Actual

Experience

Change  in Assumptions

Changes  in Proportion  and Differences
Between  Employer  Contributions  and

Proportionate  Share  of Contributions

Difference  Between  Projected  and

Actual  Investment  Earnings  on Pension

Plan Investments

District  Contributions  Made Subsequent  to

the NPL Measurement  Date

Total

December  31, 2018
Deferred  Deferred

Outflows  of  Inflows  of

Resources  Resources

$ 65,651

196,708

$ 29,463

15,734 48,880

93,596 117,730

67,640

$ 439,329 $ 196,073

December  31, 2017

Deferred  Deferred

Outflows  of

Resources
Inflows  of

Resources

$ 2,477

368,539

$ 50,698

54,109 32,675

158,176 133,473

58,768

$ 642,069 $ 216,846
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used In Calculation of the Actuarially Determined Total Pension Llabfl/ty and 
Net Pension Liability (Continued) 

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used 
is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back for one year for females). For disabled 
members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back four years for males) 
is used for the period after disability retirement. 

Pension Llab/1/tles, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related ta the County Employee Retirement System Pens/an 

At December 31, 2018, and 2017 the District reported a liability of $2,012,785 and $1,997,207, respectively for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability for CERS was measured as of June 30, 2018, and 
2017 and was based on the actual liability of the employees and former employees relative to the total liability of the system 
as determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based 
on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, and 2017 the District's proportion was ·o.033049 and 
0.034121 percent, respectively, which is a decrease of 0.001072% and 0.000730% for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 
June 30, 2017, respectively. 

The District's total payroll for the calendar year ended December 31, 2018 was $866,880. Contributions to the CERS were 
based on $836,880 (eligible gross wages). The total employer pension contributions for the calendar year ended December 
31, 2018 were $126,841. 

The District's total payroll for the calendar year ended December 31, 2017 was $827,099. Contributions to the GERS were 
based on $787,500 (eligible gross wages). The total employer pension contributions for the calendar year ended December 
31, 2017 were $110,735. 

All contributions were made as required. 

The District's contribution for the County Employees' Retirement System's year(s) ended December 31, 2018, and 2017 
was 0.033049 and 0.034121 percent. respectively, of the System's total contribution requirements for all employers. 

For the years ended December 31, 2018, and December 31, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $322,903 
and $397,032, respectively. At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the District reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to CERS pensions from the following sources: 

December 31, 2018 
Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

December 31, 2017 
Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Difference Between Expected and Actual 
Experience 

Change in Assumptions 
Changes in Proportion and Differences 

Between Em player Contributions and 
Proportionate Share of Contributions 

Difference Between Projected and 
Actual Investment Earnings on Pension 
Plan I nvestrnents 

District Contributions Made Subsequent to 
the NPL Measurement Date 

Total 

Resources 

$ 65,651 
196,708 

15,734 

93,596 

67 640 
$ 439,329 

Resources 

$ 29,463 

48,880 

117,730 

$ 196,073 

Resources 

$ 2,477 
368,539 

54, 109 

158,176 

58 768 
$ 642,069 

Resources 

$ 50,698 

32,675 

133,473 

$ 216,846 
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December  31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION PLAN
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

Pension  Liabilities,  Pension  Expense,  and Deferred  Outflows  of  Resources  and Deferred  Inflows  of  Resources
Related  to the County  Employee  Retirement  System  Pension  (Continued)

In the District's 2017 audit report deferred outflows and inflows attributable  to the net difference  between projected and
actual investment  earnings  on pension plan assets were netted. They are shown at gross above.

$67,640  and $58,768 reported as deferred  outflows  of resources  related to pensions  arising from District  contributions  made

subsequent  to the measurement  date will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability in the years  ended

December  31, 2019 and 2018. Amounts  reported as deferred inflows and outflows  of resources  due to the net difference

between projected  and actual investment  earnings  on pension plan investments  will be netted and amortized  over  five  years

and recognized in pension expense. Amounts  reported as deferred outflows of resources  due to the difference  between
expected and actual experience,  change of assumptions,  and changes in proportion and differences  between employer

contributions  and proportionate  share of contributions  will be amortized and recognized  in pension expense  over  the

expected remaining service lives of all employees. Total amortization  to be recognized  in pension expense  is presented
below  as follows:

Year Ended December  31, 2018:

Year  Ended December  31, 2017:

2019

2020

2021

2022

2018

2019

2020

2021

Increase

(Decrease)

to Pension  Expense

$ 154,848
61,799

(30,229)

(10,802)

175,616

Increase

(Decrease)
to Pension  Expense
$ 170,534

158,627

62,940

(25,646)

366,455

Sensitivity  of  the District's  Proportionate  Share  of  the Net Pension  Liability  to Changes  in the Discount  Rate

The following table presents  the net pension liability of CERS [as reported in its publicly available  financial  statements  for
the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017], calculated using the discount  rates of 6.25% and 6.25% for the years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively,  as well as what CERS' net pension liability would be if it were calculated using  a

discount  rate that is one percentage  point lower or one percentage  point higher than the approved  rate:

As of June  30, 2018
Net Pension Liability
District's Proportionate  Share

1% Decrease

[5.25%J
$ 7,667,062,949

2,533,888

Current  Discount

[6.25%]

$ 6,090,304,793

2,012,785

As of June  30, 2017
Net Pension Liability
District's Proportionate  Share

1% Decrease

[5.25%1
$ 7,382,285,860

2,518,910

Current  Discount
[6.25%]

$ 5,853,307,449
1,997,207

1%  Increase

[7.25%]

$ 4,769,257,576

1,576,192

1% Increase
[7.25%]

$ 4,574,328,530
1,560,807
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December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT IINSURANCE PLAN) (Continued)_ 

Pension L/ab/1/tles, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to the County Employee Retirement System Pension (Continued) 

In the District's 2017 audit report deferred outflows and inflows attributable to the net difference between projected and 
actual investment earnings on pension plan assets were netted. They are shown at gross above. 

$67,640 and $58,768 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions arising from District contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability in the years ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018. Amounts reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources due to the net difference 
between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments will be netted and amortized over five years 
and recognized in pension expense. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources due to the difference between 
expected and actual experience, change of assumptions, and changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions will be amortized and recognized in pension expense over the 
expected remaining service lives of all employees. Total amortization to be recognized in pension expense is presenied 
below as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2018: 

Year Ended December 31, 2017: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

to Pension Expense 
$ 154,848 

61,799 
(30,229) 
(10,802) 

$ 175,616 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

to Pension Expense s 170,534 
158,627 
62,940 

(25,646) 
$ 366,455 

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following table presents the net pension liability of CERS [as reported in its publicly available financial statements for 
the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017], calculated using the discount rates of 6.25% and 6.25% for the years ended 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as well as what CERS' net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the approved rate: 

I 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase i 
- I As of June 30, 2018 [5.25%] [6.25%] [Z.25%] I Net Pension Liability $ 7,667,062,949 $ 6,090,304,793 $ 4,769,257,576 

District's Proportionate Share 2,533,888 2,012,785 1,576,192 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase 
As of June 30, 2017 [5.25%] [6.25%] [Z.25%] 
Net Pension Liability $ 7,382,285,860 $ 5,853,307,449 $ 4,574,328,530 
District's Proportionate Share 2,518,910 1,997,207 1,560,807 
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NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018  and  2017

NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION PLAN
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

Payable  to the Pension  Plan

At December  31 2018 and 2017, the District reported a payable of $18,291 and $26,857 for the outstanding  amount of
contributions  required tor the years then ended. The amount  represents  the employee  withholding  and employer  match for
the last month of the years then ended for 2018 and 2017.  The 2018 payable was reduced by $2,357 due back from
Kentucky  Retirement  Systems  for an overpayment  by the District.

Insurance  (OPEB) Plan Description  - The Kentucky Retirement Systems' Insurance Fund (Insurance Fund)  was

established  to provide hospital and medical insurance  for eligible members receiving benefits from KERS, CERS, and

SPRS. The eligible non-Medicare  retirees  are covered by the Department  of Employee  Insurance  (DEI) plans. KRS submits

the premium payments  to DEI. The Board contracts  with Humana to provide health care benefits to the eligible Medicare

retirees through a Medicare  Advantage  Plan. The Insurance Fund pays a prescribed contribution  for whole or partial

payment  of required premiums  to purchase hospital and medical insurance.  A portion of the insurance premiums are
withheld  from benefit payments  for members  including those of the CERS Non-Hazardous  system.

Contributions

As a result of House Bill 290 (2004 Kentucky  General  Assembly),  medical insurance  benefits  are calculated  differently  for

members  who began participating  on, or after, July 1, 2003. Once members  reach a minimum vesting period of 10 years,

non-hazardous  employees  whose participation  began on, or after, July 1, 2003, earn $10 per month for insurance  benefits
at retirement  for every year of earned service  without  regard to a maximum  dollar amount. This dollar amount  is subject  to
adjustment  annually, which is currently  1.5%, based upon Kentucky Revised Statutes. This benefit is not protected under

the inviolable  contract  provisions  of Kentucky  Revised Statute 78.852. The Kentucky  General  Assembly  reserves the right
to suspend or reduce this benefit  if, in its judgment,  the welfare of the Commonwealth  so demands.

The amount of contribution  paid by the Insurance  Fund is based on years of service.  For members  participating  prior  to

July 1, 2003, years of service  and respective  percentages  of the maximum  contribution  are as follows:

Portion  Paid

Years  of  Service

20+  years

15-19  years

10-14  years

4-9  years

Less  than  4 years

by Insurance  Fund

Paid  by

Insurance  Fund  (%)

100.OO%

75.00%

50.00%

25.00%

O.OO%

For members  participating  on or after July 4, 2003, for CERS Non-Hazardous  members, the dollar contribution  for fiscal
years 2018 and 2017 was $13.38 and $13.18, respectively.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, plan members  who began on, or affer, September  "I, 2008 (classified
in the Tier 2 or Tier 3 structure  of benefits)  were required to contribute  1 % of their annual creditable  compensation  to an
account created for the payment  of health insurance benefits under 26 USC Section 401(h) in the Pension Fund (see
Kentucky  Administrative  Regulation  105 KAR I :420E).

If a member  terminates  employment  the 1 % contribution  to the 401 (h) account  is non-refundable  and is forfeited.

Participating  employers  are required to contribute  at an actuarially  determined  rate as described  previously.
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NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT !INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued) 

Payable to the Pension Plan 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the District reported a payable of $18,291 and $26,857 for the outstanding amount of 
contributions required tor the years then ended. The amount represents the employee withholding and employer match for 
the last month of the years then ended for 2018 and 2017. The 2018 payable was reduced by $2,357 due back from 
Kentucky Retirement Systems for an overpayment by the District. 

Insurance (OPEB) Plan Description - The Kentucky Retirement Systems' Insurance Fund (Insurance Fund) was 
established to provide hospital and medical insurance for eligible members receiving benefits from KERS, CERS, and 
SPRS. The eligible non-Medicare retirees are covered by the Department of Employee Insurance (DEi) plans. KRS submits 
the premium payments to DEi. The Board contracts with Humana to provide health care benefits to the eligible Medicare 
retirees through a Medicare Advantage Plan. The Insurance Fund pays a prescribed contribution for whole or partial 
payment of required premiums to purchase hospital and medical insurance. A portion of the insurance premiums are 
withheld from benefit payments for members including those of the CERS Non-Hazardous system. 

Contributions 

As a result of House Bill 290 (2004 Kentucky General Assembly), medical insurance benefits are calculated differenUy for 
members who began participating on. or after, July 1, 2003. Once members reach a minimum vesting period of 10 years. 
non-hazardous employees whose participation began on, or after, July 1, 2003, earn $1 O per month for insurance benefits 
at retirement for every year of earned service without regard to a maximum dollar amount. This dollar amount is subject to 
adjustment annually, which is currently 1.5%, based upon Kentucky Revised Statutes. This benefit is not protected under 
the Inviolable contract provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 78.852. The Kentucky General Assembly reserves the right 
to suspend or reduce this benefit if, in its judgmen� the welfare of the Commonwealth so demands. 

The amount of contribution paid by the Insurance Fund is based on years of service. For members participating prior to 
July 1, 2003, years of service and respective percentages of the maximum contribution are as follows: 

Portion Paid by Insurance Fund 
Paid by 

Insurance Fund (%) 
100.00% 

75.00% 
50.00% 
25.00% 

0.00% 

For members participating on or after July 1, 2003, for CERS Non-Hazardous members, the dollar contribution for fiscal 
years 2018 and 2017 was $13.38 and $13.18, respectively. 

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, plan members who began on, or after, September 1, 2008 (classified 
in the Tier 2 or Tier 3 structure of benefits) were required to contribute 1 % of their annual creditable compensation to an 
account created for the payment of health insurance benefits under 26 USC Section 401 (h) in the Pension Fund (see 
Kentucky Administrative Regulation 105 KAR 1 :420E). 

If a member terminates employment the 1 % contribution to the 401 (h) account is non-refundable and is forfeited. 

Participating employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate as described previously. 
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December  31,  2018  and  2017

NOTE  16 - COUNTY  EMPLOYEES'  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM  -  NON-HAZARDOUS  EMPLOYEES  PENSION  PLAN
AND  POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

Methods  and  Assumptions  Used  in Calculation  of  Actuarially  Determined  Contributions  (OPEB)

Per  the GASB  Statement  No. 75, Report  for  Postemployment  Benefits  Other  than  Pensions  for  the Kentucky  County
Employees  Retirement  System  prepared  as of June  30, 2018  and 2017,  the actuarially  determined  contribution  rates
effective  for  fiscal  year  ending  2018  are  calculated  as of  June  30, 2017.  The  actuarial  methods  and  assumptions  used  to
calculate  the  actuarially  determined  contributions  are  as follows:

Item

CERS

June  30, 2C)18

Non-Hazardous/Hazardous

CERS

June  30, 2017

Non-Hazardous/Hazardous

Determined  by the Actuarial

Valuation  as of:

Experience  Study

Actuarial  Cost  Method:

Asset  Valuation  Method:

Amortization  Method:

RemainingAmortization  Period:

Payroll  Growth:

Investment  Return:

Inflation:

Salary  Increases:

Mortality:

Healthcare  Trend  Rates:

Pre-65

Post-65

June  30, 20al6

July  1, 2008  - June  30, 2013

Entry  Age  Normal

20%  of  the difference  between  the

market  value  of assets  and the

expected  actuarial  value  of assets

is recognized.

Level  Percent  of Pay

27 Years,  Closed

4.00%,  average

7.50%

3.25%

4.00%,  average

The  mortality  table  used  for  active  members

is RP-2000  Combined  Mortality  Table

projected  with  Scale  BB to 2013  (multiplied

by 50%  for males  and 30%  for  females).

For  healthy  retired  members  and

beneficiaries,  the mortality  table  used  is the

RP-2000  Combined  Mortality  Table

projected  with  Scale  BB to 20al3 (set-back

for  one  year  for  females).  For disabled

members,  the  RP-2000  Combined  Disabled

Mortality  Table  projected  with Scale  BB to

2013  (set-back  four  years  for males)  is used

ifor  the period  after  disability  retirement.

Initial  trend  starting  at 7.50%  and gradually

decreasing  to an ultimate  trend  rate of

5.00%  over  a period  of 5 years.

Initial  trend  starting  at 5.50%  and  gradually

decreasing  to an ultimate  trend  rate  of 5.0%

over  a period  of 2 years.

June  30, 2015

July  1, 2008  - June  30, 2013

Entry  Age  Normal

20%  of  the difference  between  the

market  value  of assets  and the

expected  actuarial  value  of assets

is recognized.

Level  Percent  of Pay

28 Years,  Closed

4.00%,  average

7.50%

3.25%

4.00%,  average

The  mortality  table  used  for  active  members

is RP-2000  Combined  Mortality  Table

projected  with  Scale  BB to 20'l3  (multiplied

b'l  50% far males and 30% far females). For
healthy  retired  members  and beneficiaries,

the mortality  table  used  is the RP-2000

Combined  Mortality  Table  projected  with

Scale  BB to 2C)13 (set-back  for  one  year  for

females).  For  disabled  members,  the RP-

2000  Combined  Disabled  Mortality  Table

projected  with  Scale  BB to 2013  (set-back

four  years  for  males)  is used  for  the period

after  disability  retirement.

Initial  trend  starting  at 7.50%  and gradually

decreasing  to an ultimate  trend  rate  of 5.00%

over  a period  of 5 years.

Initial  trend  starting  at 5.50%  and  gradually

decreasing  to an ultimate  trend  rate of 5.0%

over  a period  of 2 years.
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NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT !INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued) 

Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculation of Actuarially Determined Contributions (OPEB) 

Per the GASB Statement No. 75, Report for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions for the Kentucky County 
Employees Retirement System prepared as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the actuarially determined contribution rates 
effective for fiscal year ending 2018 are calculated as of June 30, 2017. The actuarial methods and assumptions used to 
calculate the actuarially determined contributions are as follows: 

CERS CERS 
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 

Item Non-Hazardous/Hazardous Non-Hazardous/Hazardous 
Determined by the Actuarial 

Valuation as of: June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 
Experience Study July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013 July 1, 2008 -June 30, 2013 
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal 
Asset Valuation Method: 20% of the difference between the 20% of the difference between the 

market value of assets and the market value of assets and the 
expected actuarial value of assets expected actuarial value of assets 
is recognized. is recognized. 

Amortization Method: Level Percent of Pay Level Percent of Pay 
RemainingAmortization Period: 27 Years, Closed 28 Years, Closed 
Payroll Growth: 4.00%, average 4.00%, average 
Investment Return: 7.50% 7.50% 
Inflation: 3.25% 3.25% 
Salary Increases: 4.00%, average 4.00%, average 
Mortality: The mortality table used for active members The mortality table used for active members 

is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 
projected with Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied projected with Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied 
by 50% for males and 30% for females). by 50% for males and 30% for females). For 
For healthy retired members and healthy retired members and beneficiaries, 
beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the the mortality table used is the RP-2000 
RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table Combined Mortality Table projected with 
projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back Scale BB to 2013 (set-back for one year for 
for one year for females). For disabled females). For disabled members, the RP- 
members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled 2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table 
Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back 
2013 (set-back four years for males) is used four years for males) is used for the period 
for the period after disability retirement. after disability retirement. 

Healthcare Trend Rates: 

Pre-65 Initial trend starting at 7.50% and gradually Initial trend starting at 7.50% and gradually 
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 5.00% 
5.00% over a period of 5 years. over a period of 5 years. 

Post-65 lnltial trend starting at 5.50% and gradually Initial trend starting at 5.50% and gradually 
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 5.0% decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 5.0% 
over a period of 2 years. over a period of 2 years. 
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AND  POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

Actuarial  Methods  and  Assumptions  to Determine  the  Total  OPEB  Liability  and  Net  OPEB  Liability

For  financial  reporting  the actuarial  valuation  as of June  30, 2018,  was  performed  by Gabriel  Roeder  Smith  (GRS).  The

total  OPEB  liability,  net OPEB  liability,  and  sensitivity  information  as of June  30, 2018,  were  based  on an actuarial  valuation
date  of June  30, 2017.  The  total  OPEB  liability  was rolled-forward  from  the valuation  date  (June  30, 2017)  to the plan's
fiscal  year  ending  June  30, 2018,  using  generally  accepted  actuarial  principles.  The  total OPEB  liability  at June  30, 2017
was  rolled  from  the June  30, 2016  valuation  date  using  generally  accepted  accounting  principles.  There  have been no
changes  in actuarial  assumptions  since  June  30, 2017  (other  than the blended  discount  rate used to calculate  the total
OPEB  liability).  However,  during  the 2018  legislative  session,  House  Bill 185 was enacted,  which  updated  the benefit
provisions  for  active  members  who  die in the line of duty.  The  system  shall now pay I 00% of the insurance  premium  for

spouses  and children  for all active  members  who  die in the line of duty.  The  total  OPEB  liability  as of June  30, 2018,  is

determined  using  these  updated  benefit  provisions.

The  actuarial  assumptions  are:

Inflation
Payroll  Growth  Rate

Salary  Increases

Investment  Rate  of Return
Healthcare  Trend  Rates

Pre -  65

Post  -  65

2.30%
2.0%  for  CERS

Non-hazardous  and hazardous
3.05%,  average
6.25%

Initial  trend  starting  at 7.00%  at January  1, 2020,  and gradually  decreasing  to an
ultimate  trend  rate  of 4.05%  over  a period  of 'l 2 years.
Initial  trend  starting  at 5.00%  at January  1, 2020,  and gradually  decreasing  to an
ultimate  trend  rate of 4.05%  over  a period  of 10 years.

The mortality  table  used for active  members  is RP-2000  Combined  Mortality  Table  projected  with Scale  BB to 2013

(multiplied  by 50%  for  males  and 30%  for  females).  For  healthy  retired  members  and beneficiaries,  the mortality  table  used

istheRP-2000CombinedMortalityTableprojectedwithScaleBBto2013(set-backforoneyearforfemales).  Fordisabled
members,  the RP-2000  Combined  Disabled  Mortality  Table  projected  with  Scale  BB to 2013  (set-back  four  years  for  males)
is used  for  the period  after  disability  retirement.

Long-Term  Expected  Rate  of  Return

The  long-term  expected  rate  of return  was  determined  by using  a building-block  method  in which  best-estimate  ranges  of
expected  future  real rate  of returns  are  developed  for  each  asset  class.  The  ranges  are  combined  by weighting  the  expected

future  real rate of return  by the target  asset  allocation  percentage.

The  long-term  expected  real rate  of return  was  6.09%  and 6.25%  at June  30, 2018  and 2017.

Discount  Rate

The  projection  of cash flows  used to determine  the June  30, 2018  discount  rate of 5.85%  for CERS  Non-hazardous,

assumed  that  local  employers  would  contribute  the actuarially  determined  contribution  rate  of projected  compensation  over

the remaining  25 years  (closed)  amortization  period  of the unfunded  actuarial  accrued  liability.  The discount  rate

determination  used  an expected  rate of return  of  6.25%,  and a municipal  bond  rate of 3.62%,  as reported  in Fidelity  Index's
"20-Year  Municipal  GO AA Index"  as of June  30, 2018.

The  discount  rates  used  to measure  the total  OPEB  liability  as of June  30, 2017  for  the CERS  Non-Hazardous  group  were

based  on the expected  rate of return  on OPEB  plan investments  of 6.25%  and a municipal  bond  rate of 3.56%,  as reported
in Fidelity  Index's  "20-year  Municipal  GO AA Index"  as of June  30, 2017.

The  fully-insured  premiums  KRS pays  for  the CERS  Plan are
and  retired  members.  Because  the  average  cost  of  providing

blended  rates  based  on the combined  experience  of active

health  care  benefits  to retirees  under  age  65 is higher  than
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions to Determine the Total OPEB Liability and Net OPEB Liabll/ty 

For financial reporting the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, was perfonned by Gabriel Roeder Smith (GRS). The 
total OPEB liability, net OPEB liability, and sensitivity information as of June 30, 2018, were based on an actuarial valuation 
date of June 30, 2017. The total OPEB liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date (June 30, 2017) to the plan's 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, using generally accepted actuarial principles. The total OPEB liability at June 30, 2017 
was rolled from the June 30, 2016 valuation date using generally accepted accounting principles. There have been no 
changes in actuarial assumptions since June 30, 2017 (other than the blended discount rate used to calculate the total 
OPEB liability). However, during the 2018 legislative session, House Bill 185 was enacted, which updated the benefit 
provisions for active members who die in the line of duty. The system shall now pay 100% of the insurance premium for 
spouses and children for all active members who die in the line of duty. The total OPES liability as of June 30, 2018, is 
determined using these updated benefit provisions. 

The actuarial assumptions are: 

Inflation 
Payroll Growth Rate 

Salary Increases 
Investment Rate of Return 
Healthcare Trend Rates 

Pre -65 

Post-65 

2.30% 
2.0% for GERS 
Non-hazardous and hazardous 
3.05%, average 
6.25% 

Initial trend starting at 7.00% at January 1, 2020, and gradually decreasing to an 
ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 12 years. 
Initial trend starting at 5.00% at January 1, 2020, and gradually decreasing to an 
ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 10 years. 

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used 
is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back for one year for females). For disabled 
members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back four years for males) 
is used for the period after disability retirement. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return was detennined by using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class. The ranges are combined by weighting the expected 
future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage. 

The long-term expected real rate of return was 6.09% and 6.25% at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the June 30, 2018 discount rate of 5.85% for GERS Non-hazardous, 
assumed that local employers would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation over 
the remaining 25 years (closed) amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The discount rate 
determination used an expected rate of return of 6.25%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.62%, as reported in Fidelity Index's 
'20-Year Municipal GO AA Index" as of June 30, 2018. 

The discount rates used to measure the total OPES liability as of June 30, 2017 for the CERS Non-Hazardous group were 
based on the expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments of 6.25% and a municipal bond rate of 3.56%, as reported 
in Fidelity Index's "20-year Municipal GO AA Index' as of June 30, 2017. 

The fully-insured premiums KRS pays for the GERS Plan are blended rates based on the combined experience of active 
and retired members. Because the average cost of providing health care benefits to retirees under age 65 is higher than 
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Discount  Rate  (Continued)

the average  cost of providing  health care benefits  to active  employees,  there is an implicit  employer  subsidy  for the non-

Medicare  eligible  retirees. The liability  associated  with this implicit  subsidy  is included  in the calculation  of the total OPEB
liability.

However,  the cost  associated  with the implicit  employer  subsidy  was not included  in the calculation  of the System's  actuarial
determined  contributions,  and any cost associated  with the implicit  subsidy  will not be paid out of the System's  trusts.
Therefore,  the municipal  bond rate was applied  to future  expected  benefit  payments  associated  with the implicit  subsidy.

The target asset allocation  and best estimates  of arithmetic  nominal rates of return for each major  asset class are

summarized  in the Kentucky  Retirement  System's  CAFR.

OPEB  Liabilities,  OPEB  Expense,  and  Deferred  Outflows  of  Resources  and  Deferred  Inflows  of  Resources  related
to the County  Employee  Retirement  System  Insurance  Plan

At December  31, 2018 and 2017 the District  reported  a liability  of $178,525  and $203,  165, respectively.

The District's  total payroll  for the calendar  year  ended December  31, 2018 was $868,880.  Contributions  were based on
$836,880  (eligible  gross  wages). The total employer  contributions  to the Health Insurance  Fund for the year  ended June
30, 2018 were  $41,160.

The District's  total payroll  for the calendar  year  ended December  31, 2017 was $827,099.  Contributions  were based on
$787,500  (eligible  gross  wages). The total employer  contributions  to the Health Insurance  Fund for the year  ended June
30, 2017 were  $37,546.

All contributions  were  made  as required.

The Districts  contribution  for the County  Employee's  Retirement  System's  (Insurance  Plan) for the years  ended June 30,
2018 and 2017 was O.033049  percent  and O.034121 percent,  respectively,  of the System's  total contribution  requirements
for  all employers.

The implicit  employer  subsidy  for  the non-Medicare  eligible  retirees  for the years  ended  June  30, 2018  and 2017  was $7,003
and $4,304, respectively.

For the years ended December  31, 2018 and 2017, the District  recognized  OPEB expense  of $64,910  and $78,167,
respectively.  At December  31, 2018 and 2017 the District  reported  deferred  outflows  of resources  and deferred  inflows  of
resources  related  to CERS OPEB  from the following  sources:

December  31, 2018

Deferred  Deferred

Outflows  of  Inflows  of

Resources  Resources

Difference  Between  Expected  and Actual
Experience

Change  in Assumptions

Changes  in Proportion  and Differences

Between  Employer  Contributions  and

Proportionate  Share  of Contributions

Difference  Between  Projected  and

Actual  Investment  Earnings  on Insurance

Plan Investments

District  Contributions  Made  Subsequent  to

the Net OPEB Measurement  Date

Total

117,181

21,949

$ 139,130

$ 68,377

1 ,356

18,669

40,415

$ 128,817

December  31, 2017

Deferred  Deferred

Outflows  of  Inflows  of

Resources  Resources

$ 1,905

149,258

1,592

32,418

19,926

$ 169,184 $ 35,915
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Discount Rate (Continued) 

the average cost of providing health care benefits to active employees, there is an implicit employer subsidy for the non­ 
Medicare eligible retirees. The liability associated with this implicit subsidy is included in the calculation of the total OPEB 
liability. 

However, the cost associated with the lrnplicit employer subsidy was not included in the calculation of the System's actuarial 
determined contributions, and any cost associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the System's trusts. 
Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected benefit payments associated with the implicit subsidy. 
The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the Kentucky Retirement System's CAFR. 

OPES Liabilities, OPES Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related 
to the County Employee Retirement System Insurance Plan 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the District reported a liability of $178,525 and $203, 165, respectively. 

The District's total payroll for the calendar year ended December 31, 2018 was $868,880. Contributions were based on 
$836,880 (eligible gross wages). The total employer contributions to the Health Insurance Fund for the year ended June 
30, 2018 were $41,160. 

The District's total payroll for the calendar year ended December 31, 2017 was $827,099. Contributions were based on 
$787,500 (eligible gross wages). The total employer contributions to the Health Insurance Fund for the year ended June 
30, 2017 were $37,546. 

All contributions were made as required. 

The Districts contribution for the County Employee's Retirement System's (Insurance Plan) for the years ended June 30, 
2018 and 2017 was 0.033049 percent and 0.034121 percent, respectively, of the System's total contribution requirements 
for all employers. 

The implicit employer subsidy for the non-Medicare eligible retirees for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $7,003 
and $4,304, respectively. 

For the years ended December 31, 20·18 and 2017, the District recognized OPEB expense of $64,910 and $78, 167, 
respectively. At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to GERS OPEB from the following sources: 

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 

Resources Resources 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Inflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 

Deferred Deferred 

Difference Between Expected and Actual 
Experience 

Change in Assumptions 
Changes in Proportion and Differences 

Between Employer Contributions and 
Proportionate Share of Contributions 

Difference Between Projected and 
Actual Investment Earnings on Insurance 
Plan Investments 

District Contributions Made Subsequent to 
the Net OPEB Measurement Date 

Total 

$ 
117, 181 

21,949 
$ 139,130 

$ 68,377 
1,356 

18,669 

40,415 

$ 128,817 

$ 
149,258 

19,926 
$ 169, 184 

$ 1,905 

1,592 

32,418 
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AND  POST-EMPLOYMENT  HEALTHCARE  BENEFIT  (INSURANCE  PLAN)  (Continued)

OPEB  Liabilities,  OPEB  Expense,  and  Deferred  Outflows  of  Resources  and  Deferred  Inflows  of  Resources  related
to the  County  Employee  Retirement  System  Insurance  Plan  (Continued)

$21,949  and $19,926  reported as deferred  outflows  of resources  related  to OPEB  arising  from District  contributions  made
subsequent  to the measurement  date  will be recognized  as a reduction  in the net OPEB  liability  in the years  ended

December 31  2019  and 2018  respectively. Amounts reported as deferred  inflows  and outflows of resources  due to the net
difference  between  projected  and actual  investment  earnings  on OPEB  plan investments  will be netted  and amortized  over
five  years  and recognized  in OPEB  expense.  Amounts  reported  as deferred  outflows  of resources  and deferred  inflows  of
resources  due to the difference  between  expected  and actual  experience,  change  of assumptions,  and changes  in
proportion  and differences  between  employer  contributions  and proportionate  share  of contributions  will be amortized  and

recognized  in OPEB  expense  over  the expected  remaining  service  lives of all employees.  Total  amortization  to be
recognized  in OPEB  expense  is presented  below  as follows:

Increase

Year  Ended  December  31, 2018:

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafier

Year  Ended  December  31, 2017:

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Thereafter

(Decrease)

to  OPEB  Expense

$ (1 ,492)

(1,492)

(1,492)

6,358

(8,670)

(4,848)

$(11,636)

Increase

(Decrease)

to  OPEB  Expense

$ 19,502

19,502

19,502

19,502

27,607

7,728

$113,343

Payable  to the  OPEB  Health  Insurance  Plan

At December  31, 2018  and 2017,  the District  reported  a

amount  of  contributions  required  for  the years  then  ended.

match  for  the last month  of the years  then  ended.

payable  of $4,481  and $6,580,  respectively  for the outstanding
This  amount  represents  the employee  withholding  and employer

Sensitivity  of  the  District's  Proportionate  Share  of  the  Net  Other  Post  Employment  Benefit  (OPEB)  Liability  to
Changes  in the  Discount  Rate  and  Healthcare  Trend  Rate

The  following  table  presents  the net other  post-employment  benefit  liability  of CERS  [as reported  in its publicly  available

financial  statements  for  the years  ended  June  30, 2018  and 2017,  calculated  using  the single  discount  rates  of 5.85%  and

5.84%,  respectively  as well  as what  CERS'  net OPEB  liability  would  be if it were  calculated  using  a single  discount  rate that
is one percentage  point  lower  or one  percentage  point  higher  than  the approved  rate:
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OPES Llabllltles, OPES Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related 
to the County Employee Retirement System Insurance Plan (Continued) 

$21,949 and $19,926 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB arising from District contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net OPEB liability in the years ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018 respectively. Amounts reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources due to the net 
difference between projected and actual investment earnings on OPEB plan investments will be netted and amortized over 
five years and recognized in OPEB expense. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources due to the difference between expected and actual experience, change of assumptions, and changes in 
proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions will be amortized and 
recognized in OPEB expense over the expected remaining service lives of all employees. Total amortization to be 
recognized in OPEB expense is presented below as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2018: 

Year Ended December 31, 2017: 

Payable to the OPEB Health Insurance Plan 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Thereafter 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

to OPEB Expense 
$ (1,492) 

(1,492) 
(1,492) 
6,358 

(8,670) 
(4,848) 

$ (11,636) 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

to OPEB Expense 
$ 19,502 

19,502 
19,502 
19,502 
27,607 

7,728 
$ 113,343 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the District reported a payable of $4,481 and $6,580, respectively for the outstanding 
amount of contributions required for the years then ended. This amount represents the employee withholding and employer 
match for the last month of the years then ended. 

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Other Post Employment Benefit (OPES) Liability to 
Changes In the Discount Rate and Healthcare Trend Rate 

The following table presents the net other post-employment benefit liability of GERS [as reported in its publicly available 
financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, calculated using the single discount rates of 5.85% and 
5.84%, respectively as well as what GERS' net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate that 
is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the approved rate: 
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Sensitivity  d  the District's  Proportionate  Share  of  the Net Other  Post  Employment  Benefit  (OPEB)  Liability  to
Changes  in the  Discount  Rate  and  Healthcare  Trend  Rate  (Continued)

As of June 30, 2018

Net OPEB  Liability
District's  Proportionate  Share

1 % Decrease

[4.85%]

$ 2,306,064,041
762,085

Current  Discount

[5.85%J
$ 1,775,480122

586,743

1% Increase

[6.85%]

$ 1,323,519,582
437,384

The following  table presents  the net other  post-employment  benefit  liability  of CERS [as reported  in its publicly  available

financial  statements  for the year  ended  June 30, 2018, calculated  using the healthcare  cost  trend rate for the year  ended
June 30, 2018 as well as what  CERS'  net OPEB  liability  would  be if it were calculated  using a healthcare  cost  trend rate
that is one percentage  point  lower  or one percentage  point higher  than the approved  rate:

As of June 30, 2018

Net OPEB Liability
District's  Proportionate  Share

1%

Decrease

$ 1,321,862,520
436,836

Current  Healthcare  Cost

Trend  Rate

$ 1,775,480122
586,743

1%

Increase

$ 2,310,164,647
763,440

The following  table presents  the net other  post-employment  benefit  liability  of CERS [as reported  in its publicly  available
financial  statements  for the year ended June 30, 2017, calculated  using the single  discount  rates of 5.84%  for the year
ended  June 30, 2017 as well as what  CERS'  net OPEB liability  would be if it were  calculated  using a single  discount  rate
that  is one percentage  point  lower  or one percentage  point higher  than the approved  rate:

As of June 30, 2017

Net OPEB Liability

District's  Proportionate  Share

4 % Decrease
[4.84%]

$ 2,558,048,813
872,832

Current  Discount

[5.84%]

$ 2,010,342,058
685,949

"1% Increase
[6.84%]

$ 1,554,563,974
530,433

The following  table presents  the net other  post-employment  benefit  liability  of CERS [as reported  in its publicly  available
financial  statements  for the year  ended  June 30, 20al7, calculated  using the healthcare  cost  trend rate for the year  ended
June 30, 2017 as well as what  CERS'  net OPEB  liability  would  be if it were  calculated  using a healthcare  cost  trend rate
that is one percentage  point  lower  or one percentage  point higher  than the approved  rate:

As of June 30, 2017

Net OPEB Liability
District's  Proportionate  Share

1%

Decrease

$ 1,542,035,808
526,158

NOTE  17 -  DEFICIT  NET POSITION

Current  Healthcare  Cost

Trend  Rate

$ 2,010,342,058
685,949

1%

Increase

$ 2,619,112,629
893,668

An unrestricted  net position deficit  of $1,614,014  and $1,606,535  existed  at December  31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
The  deficit  resulted  from the recognition  of net pension  liability,  net OPEB  liability,  and related  deferred  outflows  of resources

and deferred  inflows  of resources  due to the implementation  of GASB Statements  No. 68 and 75.

Unrestricted  net position  was reduced  by $221,295  and $317,345  for the years ended December  31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively,  as a result  of the transactions  recorded  by the District  to reflect  its proportionate  share  of the County  Employees
Retirement  System's  Net Pension  Liability  and Net OPEB  Liability. The accounts  affected  were  as follows:
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 16 - COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - NON-HAZARDOUS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 
AND POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT !INSURANCE PLAN) (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Liability to 
Changes In the Discount Rate and Healthcare Trend Rate (Continued) 

As of June 30 2018 
Net OPEB Liability 
District's Proportionate Share 

1% Decrease 
(4.85%) 

$ 2,306,064,041 
762,085 

Current Discount 
(5.85%] 

$ 1,775,480, 122 
586,743 

1% Increase 
[6.85%) 

$ 1,323,519,582 
437,384 

The following table presents the net other post-employment benefit liability of CERS [as reported in its publicly available 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rate for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 as well as what CERS' net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate 
that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the approved rate: 

As of June 30, 2018 
Net OPEB Liability 
District's Proportionate Share 

1% 
Decrease 

$ 1,321,862,520 
436,836 

Current Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rate 

$ 1, 775,480, 122 
586,743 

1% 
Increase 

$ 2,310,164,647 
763,440 

The following table presents the net other post-employment benefrt liability of GERS [as reported in its publicly available 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, calculated using the single discount rates of 5.84% for the year 
ended June 30, 2017 as well as what CERS' net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate 
that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the approved rate: 

As of June 30, 2017 
Net OPEB Liability 
District's Proportionate Share 

1% Decrease 
[4.84%) 

$ 2,558,048,813 
872,832 

Current Discount 
[5.84%] 

$ 2,010,342,058 
685,949 

1% Increase 
(6.84%] 

$ 1,554,563,974 
530,433 

The following table presents the net other post-employment benefit liability of CERS [as reported in its publicly available 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rate for the year ended 
June 30, 2017 as well as what CERS' net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate 
that is one percentage l!Oint lower or one percentage point higher than the approved rate: 

As of June 30 2017 
Net OPEB Liability 
District's Proportionate Share 

NOTE 17 - DEFICIT NET POSITION 

1% 
Decrease 

$ 1,542,035,808 
526,158 

Current Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rate 

$ 2,010,342,058 
685,949 

1% 
Increase 

$ 2,619,112,629 
893,668 

An unrestricted net position deficit of $1,614,014 and $1,606,535 existed at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
The deficit resulted from the recognition of net pension liability, net OPEB liability, and related deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources due to the implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 and 75. 

Unrestricted net position was reduced by $221,295 and $317,345 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively, as a result of the transactions recorded by the District to reflect its proportionate share of the County Employees 
Retirement System's Net Pension Liability and Net OPEB Liability. The accounts affected were as follows: 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

NOTES  TO BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)
December  31, 2018  and  2017

NOTE  17 -  DEFICIT  NET  POSITION  (Continued)

Increase  (Decrease)  in Deferred  Outflows  of Resources

(Increase)  Decrease  in Deferred  Inflows  or Resources

(Increase)  Decrease  in Net Pension  Liability

(Increase)  Decrease  in Net OPEB  Liability
Net Decrease  in Unrestricted  Net Position

NOTE  18 -  ECONOMIC  DEPENDENCY

2018

(232,794)

(72,129)

(15,578)

99,206
(221,295)

20'l7

371 ,561

(216,109)

(281 ,287)

(191,510)
(317,345)

Henry County Water District #2 provides water services to residential and commercial customers in the Kentucky counties
of Henry, Trimble, Carroll, 01dham and Shelby. The District also supplies water for resale to the cities of Eminence  and
NewCastlelocatedinHenryCounty.  Itshouldbenotedthat7.35%and8.1%ofthetotalwaterchargesforservicesrevenue
was received from these cities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  The wholesale  rate
increased from $2.58 to $2.78 per 1,000 gallons in April 2017. Also, the District supplies water for resale  to West  Carroll
Water  District  at the same  wholesale  rate.

NOTE 19 - FUNDS HELD FOR FUTURE LINES AND CONTRIBUTED CAPIT  AL

The District collects funds from developers for their allocable cost of line extensions. The amount is calculated based  on

the size of the line and the number of estimated hook-ups. As others pay to hook-up to the line, portions of these funds  are
refunded to the developer.  Once a line has been completed, the developer's cost of the line is recorded  as capital
contributions from customers. The District held $1,600 and $O for future lines at December 31, 2018  and  2017,  respectively.

NOTE 20 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES  AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During the 2018 Kentucky Legislature Session, House bill 362 passed which caps CERS Employer Contribution rate
increases up to 1 2o* per year over the prior fiscal year for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2028. The CERS Employer
rates, beginning July 'l, 2018 and 2019 have been set at 21.48% and 24.06% respectively.

NOTE  21 -  NONOPERATING  REVENUES

Liquidating damages of $65,000 were recognized by the District in 2018 due to a delay in achieving  substantial  completion
by a construction  contractor.

NOTE 22 - RECENTLY IS8UED ACCOUNTING  PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement 75, Accountinq and Financial Reportinq for Postemployment  Benefits Other  Than

Pensions effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017 [District year beginning January 1, 2018]. This  statement

requires the liability of employers to employees for defined benefit OPEB (net OPEB liability) to be measured as the portion  of
the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided to current active and inactive employees  that is attributed  to
those employees' past periods of service (total OPEB liability), less the amount of the OPEB plan's  fiduciary  net position.

Under this statement, the District is required to report in its financial statement(s), the net other postemployment benefit  liability

associated with its' employees' benefits as a liability. It is also required to report a deferred outflow of resources  for its benefit,

contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net OPEB liability. These  balances  reflect  the
government's obligation to pay deferred benefits earned by its employees when the benefit [plan's]  liability exceeds  the value
of the benefit  plan's  assets.

Retroactive application by restating financial statements for all periods  presented is required.  The effect  of the reinstatement
is as follows  for the year  ended  December  31, 2017.
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 17 - DEFICIT NET POSITION (Continued) 

Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Outflows of Resources 
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Inflows of Resources 
(Increase) Decrease in Net Pension Liability 
(Increase) Decrease in Net OPEB Liabillty 
Net Decrease in Unrestricted Net Position 

NOTE 18 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

$ 

$ 

2018 
(232,794) 

(72, 129) 
(15,578) 
99,206 

(221,295) 

$ 

$ 

2017 
371,561 

(216,109) 
(281,287) 
(191,510) 

Henry County Water District #2 provides water services to residential and commercial customers in the Kentucky counties 
of Henry, Trimble, Carroll, Oldham and Shelby. The District also supplies water for resale to the cities of Eminence and 
New Casile located in Henry County. It should be noted that 7.35% and 8.1% of the total water charges for services revenue 
was- received from these cities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The wholesale rate 
increased from $2.58 to $2. 78 per 1,000 gallons in April 2017. Also, the District supplies water for resale to West Carroll 
Water District at the same wholesale rate. 

NOTE 19 - FUNDS HELD FOR FUTURE LINES AND CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

The District collects funds from developers for their allocable cost of line extensions. The amount is calculated based on 
the size of the line and the number of estimated hook-ups. As others pay to hook-up to the line, portions of these funds are 
refunded to the developer. Once a line has been completed, the developer's cost of the line is recorded as capital 
contributions from customers. The District held $1,600 and $0 for future lines at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

NOTE 20 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

During the 2018 Kentucky Legislature Session, House bill 362 passed which caps CERS Employer Contribution rate 
increases up to 12% per year over the prior fiscal year for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2028. The CERS Employer 
rates, beginning July 1, 2018 and 2019 have been set at 21.48% and 24.06% respectively. 

NOTE 21 - NONOPERATING REVENUES 

Liquidating damages of $65,000 were recognized by the District in 2018 due to a delay in achieving substantial completion 
by a construction contractor. 

NOTE 22 - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemplovment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions, effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017 [District year beginning January 1, 2018). This statement 
requires the liability of employers to employees for defined benefit OPEB (net OPEB liability) to be measured as the portion of 
the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to 
those employees' past periods of service (total OPEB liabillty), less the amount of the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position. 
Under this statement, the District is required to report in its financial statement(s), the net other postemployment benefit liability 
associated with its' employees' benefits as a liabillty. It is also required to report a deferred outflow of resources for its benefit, 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net OPEB liability. These balances reflect the 
government's obligation to pay deferred benefits earned by its employees when the benefit [plan's] liability exceeds the value 
of the benefit plan's assets. 

Retroactive application by restating financial statements for all periods presented is required. The effect of the reinstatement 
is as follows for the year ended December 31, 2017. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

NOTES  TO  BASIC  FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  (CONTINUED)

December  31, 2018  and  2017

NOTE  22 -  RECENTLY  ISSUED  ACCOUNTING  PRONOUNCEMENTS  (Continued)

Statement  of  Net  Position:

Total  Net  Position  as Originally  Presented  December  31, 20"l7

loess:  Net  OPEB  Liability

Plus:  Deferred  Outflows  - Change  in Assumptions

Less:  Deferred  Inflows  -

" Difference  Between  Expected  & Actual  Experience

" Change  in Proportion  & Difference  Between

Employer  Contributions  & Proportionate  Share

of  Contributions

" Net  Difference  Between  Projected  and  Actual

Investment  Earnings  on Pension  Plan  Investments

Total  Net  Position  as Restated  at December  31, 2017

The  components  of  Net  Position  at  December  31,  2017:

afier  restatement  are  as follows:

Net  Investment  in Capital  Assets

Restricted  for  Capital  Projects

Restricted  for  Deb  Service

Unrestricted

Total  Net  Position  as Restated  at December  31, 2017

Statement  of  Revenues,  Expenses  and  Changes  in Fund  Net  Position:

Change  in Net  Position  as Originally  Presented

in the  [Comparative]  Statement  for  the  Year  Ended

December  31, 2017

GASB  75 Adjustments  for  OPEB  Liability

Change  in Net  Position  as Restated

8,597,538

(685,949)

149,258

(1,905)

(1,592)

(32,418)

8,024,932

8,126,022

397,249

1,108,196

(1 ,606,535)

8,024,932

388,627

(78,167)

310,460
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

NOTE 22 - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (Continued) 

Statement of Net Position: 
Total Net Position as Originally Presented December 31, 2017 $ 8,597,538 
Less: Net OPEB Liability (685,949) 
Plus: Deferred Outflows - Change in Assumptions 149,258 
Less: Deferred Inflows - 

• Difference Between Expected & Actual Experience (1,905) 
• Change in Proportion & Difference Between 

Employer Contributions & Proportionate Share 
of Contributions (1,592) 

• Net Difference Between Projected and Actual 
Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments J32,418) 

Total Net Position as Restated at December 31, 2017 $ s::2<1. !l3:2 

The components of Net Position at December 31, 2017: 
after restatement are as follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 8, 126,022 
Restricted for Capital Projects 397,249 
Restricted for Deb Service 1,108,196 
Un restricted (1,606,535) 

Total Net Position as Restated at December 31, 2017 $ B,!l:2<1,!l:32 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position: 
Change in Net Position as Originally Presented 

in the [Comparative] Statement for the Year Ended 
December 31, 2017 $ 388,627 

GASB 75 Adjustments for OPEB Liability (78, 167) 
Change in Net Position as Restated $ 31!l,460 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

SCHEDULE  OF THE  DISTRICT'S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF THE  NET  PENSION  LIABILITY

COUNTY  EMPLOYEES  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM

Years  Ended  December  31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

District's  proportion  of the net pension  liability  (asset)  % 0.033049% 0.034121% 0.03485% 0.031399% 0.033750%

District's  proportionate  share  of the net  pension  liability  (asset) $ 2,012,785 $1  ,997,207 $1,715,920 $1 350 032 $1 095 000

District's  covered  payroll  (Calendar  Year) $ 836,880 $787,500 $ 851,267 $ 843 338 $766,921

District's  proportionate  share  of the net  pension  liability

(asset)  as a percentage  of  its of its covered  payroll 240 52% 253.61% 201.57% 160.08% 142.78%

Plan fiduciary  net position  as a percentage  of the  total

pension  liability 53.54% 53.3% 55.5% 59.97% 62.60%

Calculations  of the District's  proportion  of the net pension  liability  (%) and proportionate  share  of the net pension  liability  ($) are based  on reports  of the

Kentucky  Retirement  Systems',  County  Employees  Retirement  Systems'  Schedule  of Employer  Allocations  and Pension  Amounts  by Employer  for  the fiscal
years  ended  June  30, shown.

[)istrict  payroll  is reported  for  its' covered  calendar  years  ending  December  31, 2014  through  2018.

GASB  68 requires  the District  to present  the above  information  for 10 years. The information  will be expanded  annually  until a full 10-year  trend  is
compiled.

During the 2018 legislative session,  House  Bill 185 was enacted,  which  updated  the benefit  provisions  for active  members  who  die in the line of duty.

Benefits paid to the spouses  of deceased  members  have  been  increased  from 25% of the member's  final  rate  of pay to 75%  of the member's  average  pay.

If the member does  not have  a surviving  spouse,  benefits  paid to surviving  dependent  children  have been increased  from I 0% of the member's  final pay
rate to 50% of average  pay for  one  child,  65% of average  pay for two  children,  or 75% of average  pay for  three  children.

There have been no changes in the actuarial assumptions since June 30, 2017. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for Determining Net Pension  Liability'

2018 2017 2(H6 2015 2014

Inflation

Salary  Increases

Investment  Rate  of Return

2. 30%

3. 05%

6.25%

2. 30%

3. 05%

6.25%

3. 25%

4. 00%

7.50%

3. 25%

4. 00%

7.50%

3. 50%

4. 50%

7.75%

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males  and 30%

for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale  BB to

2013 (set-back for one year for females). For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-
back four years for males)  is used  for  the period  affer  disability  retirement.

The assumed  rates  of retirement,  withdrawal,  and disability  were  based  on an actuarial  valuation  perTormed  as of June  30, 2017

See accompanying  notes  to  the  basic  financial  statements Page  :31

HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICrs PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Years Ended December 31 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

District's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)% 0.033049% 0.034121% 0.03485% 0.031399% 0.033750% 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 2,012,785 $1,9ll7,207 s 1,715,920 $ 1,350,032 $1,095,000 

District's covered payroll (Calendar Year) $ 836,880 $787,500 s 851,267 $ 843,338 $766,921 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its of its covered payroll 240.52o/o 253.61o/o 201.57°/o 160.08% 142.78o/o 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 53.54o/o 53.3o/o 55.5% 59.97% 62.60% 

Calculations of the District's proportion of the net pension liability (o/o) and proportionate share of the net pension liability ($) are based on reports of the 
Kentucky Retirement Systems', County Employees Retirement Systems' Schedule of Employer Allocations and Pension Amounts by Employer for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, shown. 

District payroll ls reported for its' covered calendar years ending December 31, 2014 through 2018. 

GASB 68 requires the District to present the above infonnatlon for 10 years. The information wlll be expanded annually until a full 10-year trend is 
compiled. 

During the 2018 legislative session, House Biii 185 was enacted, which updated the benefit provisions for active members who die In the line of duty. 
Benefits paid to the spouses of deceased members have been increased from 25°/o of the membe(s final rate of pay to 75% of the member's average pay. 
If the member does not have a surviving spouse, benefits paid to surviving dependent children have been increased from 10% of the member's final pay 
rate to 50o/o of average pay for one chfld, 65% of average pay for two chlldren, or 75o/o of average pay for three children. 

There have been no changes in the actuarial assumptk>ns since June 30, 2017. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for Determining Net Pension Liability: 

Inflation 
Salary Increases 
Investment Rate of Return 

2018 

2.30% 
3.05o/o 
6.25% 

2017 

2.30% 
3.05% 
6.25% 

2016 

3.25% 
4.00% 
7.50% 

2015 

3.25°/o 
4.00% 
7.50% 

2014 

3.50% 
4.50% 
7.75o/o 

The mortality table used for active members is RP·2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 60o/a for males and 30o/o 
for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP·2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 
2013 (set-back for one year for females). For disabled members, the RP·2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected With Scale BB to 2013 (set­ 
back four years for males) Is used for the period after disabmty retirement. 

The assumed rates of retirement, withdrawal, and disability were based on an actuarial valuation perfonned as of June 30, 2017. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

SCHEDULE  OF THE  DISTRICT'S  CONTRIBUTIONS  (PENSION)

COUNTY  ENIPLOYEES  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM

Years  Ended  December  31

Contractually  required  contributions

Contributions  in relation  to the

contractually  required  contributions

Contribution  deficiency  (excess)

District's  covered  payroll  (calendar  year)

Contributions  as a percentage  of

covered  payroll

2018  2017  2016  2015

$ 126,841  $ 110,735  $ 114,120  $ 109,232

126  841

836,880

14.48%

110,735

787 500

13.95%

114,120

851 ,267

12.42%

109,232

$ 843  338

1 2.75%

The District's  contributions  above  include  only  contributions  to the County  Employees  Retirement  System  Pension  Fund. GASB  68 requires  the

District  to present  the above  information  for  the  CERS  pension  for  10 years.  The information  will be expanded  annually  until  a full 1 0-year  trend
is compiled.

See accompanying  notes  to  the  basic  financial  statements Page  32

HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICrs CONTRIBUTIONS (PENSION) 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Years Ended December 31 

121! 2017 £2.1§. 2015 

Contractually required contributions $ 126,841 $ 110,735 $ 114,120 $ 109,232 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contributions 126,841 110,735 114,120 109,232 

Contrlbu11on deficiency (excess) $ s $ s 

District's covered payroll (calendar year) $ 836,680 $ 787,500 $ 851,267 $ 843,338 

Conlributlons as a percentage of 
covered payroll 14.48% 13.95% 12.42% 12.75% 

The District's contributions above include only contrlbuUons to the County Employees Retirement System Pension Fund. GASB 68 requires the 
District to presenl the above information for the GERS pension for 10 years. The information wiU be expanded annually until a full 10.-year trend 
is compiled. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

SCHEDULE  OF THE DISTRICT'S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF THE NET  OPEB  LIABILITY

COUNTY  EMPLOYEES  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM

Years  Ended  December  31

20'l8 2017

District's  proportion  of  the  net  OPEB  liability  (asset)  % 0.033049% 0.034121%

District's  proportionate  share  of the net OPEB  liability  (asset) 586,743 685,949

District's  covered  payroll  (Calendar  Year) 836,880 787,500

District's  proportionate  share  of  the  net  OPEB  liability

(asset)  as  a percentage  of  its  of  its  covered  payroll 70.  44 % 87.10%

Plan  fiduciary  net  position  as  a percentage  of  the  total

OPEB  liability 57.62% 52.4%

Calculations of the District's proportion of the net OPEB liability (%) and proportionate share of the net OPEB liability ($) are based on reports of the Kentucky
Retirement Systems', County Employees Retirement Systems' Schedule of Employer Allocations and OPEB Amounts by Employer for the fiscal years ended June
30 shown.

District  covered  payroll  is reported  for  its calendar  year.

GASB  75 requires  the  District  to present  the  above  information  for  10  years  The  information  will  be  expanded  annually  umil  a full  1 0-year  trend  is compiled.

During  the  2018  legislative  session,  House  Bill 185  was  enacted,  which  updated  the  benefit  provisions  for  active  members  who  die  in the  line  of  duty.  The  system

shall  now  pay  1 00%  of  the  insurance  premium  for  spouses  and  children  of  all active  members  who  die  in the  line  of  duty.

Actuarial  Methods  and  Assumptions  for  Determining  Net  OPEB  Liability:

There  were  no changes  in actuarial  assumptions  since  June  30, 2017.

Payroll  Growth  Rate

20'l8 2017

2.0% 2.0%

Salary  Increases 3.05%  Average 3.05%  Average

Investment  Rate  of  Return 6.25% 6.25%

Investment  Rate  of  Return 7.50% 7.75%

Inflation 2.3% 2.3%

Healthcare  Trend  Rates:

Pre-65

Initial trend  at 7 00%  at January

, 1, 2020,  and gradually

decreasing  to an ultimate  trend

take of 4.05%  over  a penod  of

12 years.

Initial  trend  at 7.00%  ak Januaiy

1, 2020,  and gradually

decreasing  to an ultimate  trend

rate of 4.05%  over  a period  of

12 years.

Healthcare  Trend  Rates:

Post-65

Initial trend  staning  at 5.00%  at

January  I  2020.  and gradually

decreasing  to an ultimate  trend

rate of  4.05%  over  a period  of

TO years.

Initial  trend  stariing  at 5.00%  ak

January  12020,  and gradually

decreasing  to an ultimate  trend

rate of 4.05%  over  a perlod  of

jOyears.

Healthcare  Trend  Rates:

Mortality:

The mortality  table  used  for

active  members  is RP-2000

Combined  Mortality  Table

projected  with  Scale  BB to

2013  (multiplied  by 50%  far

males  and 30%  for  females).

For healthy  retired  msmbeis

and beneficianes,  the mortality

table  used  is the RP-2000

Combined  Mortality  Table

projected  with  Scale  BB to

2(N 3 (set-back  for  one  year  for

females).  For  disabk.d

members,  the RP-2000

Combined  Disabled  Mortality

Table  projected  with  Scale  BB

to 2013  (set-back  four  years  for

males)  is used  for  the perlod

afier  disability  retirement.

The mortality  table  used  for

aciive  members  is RP-2000

Combined  Mortality  Table

pro%cted  with  Scale  BB to
2013  (muliiplied  by 50% for

males  and 30% for  females).

For healthy  retired  members

and beneficiaries,  the mortality

table  used  is the RP-2000

Combined  Mortality  Table

projected  with  Scale  BB to

2013  (set-back  for  one year  for

females).  For  disabled

members,  the RP-2000

Combined  Disabled  Mortality

iTable  projected  with  Scale  BB

to 2(E3  (set-back  four  years  for

males)  is used  for  the period

afler  disability  retirement.
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SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICrs PROPORTIONATE SHARE DF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Years Ended December 31 

District's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset) % 

Distlict's proportionate share of the net OPEB liabiijy (asset) 

District's covered payroll (Calendar Year) 

District's proportionate share of the net OPES llablllty 
(asset) as a percentage of Its of Its covered payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
OPEB llablllty 

Calculations of the District's proporOon of the net OPEB liablllty (%) and proportionate share of the net OPEB liability ($) are based on reports of the Kentucky 
Retirement Systems', County Employees Retirement Systems' Schedule of Employer Allocatlons and OPEB Amounts by Employer for the fiscal years ended June 
30, shown. 

Disbict covered payrol is reported for its calendar year. 

GASB 75 requires the District to present the above lnformaUon for 10 years. The information will be expanded annually until a full 10-year trend Is compiled. 

During the 2018 legislative session, Hoose 8111185 was enacted, which updated the benefit provisions for active members who die In the line of duty. The system 
shall now pay 100% of the Insurance premium for spouses and ch!ldren of all active members who die In the line of duty. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for Determining Net OPEB liability: 
There were no changes in actuarial assumptions since June 30, 2017. 

2018 2017 

Payroll Growth Rate 2.0% 2.0% 
Salarv Increases 3.05% Averaae 3.05% Average 
Investment Rate of Return 6.25% 6.25o/o 
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% 7.75% 
Inflation 2.3% 2.3% 

Healthcare Trend Rates: lnlllal l(end at 7.00% at January lnltlal trend at 7 .00% at January 
Pre�65 1, 2020, end gradually 1, 2020, and gradually 

docfeaslng to an ultimate trend decreasing to an ulllmate lrend 
rate of 4.05% O'l8f a period of rate of 4.o5% over a period of 
12 years. 12yeatS. 

Healthcare Trend Rates: lnilial trend staring et 5.00% at Initial trend starting al 5.00% at 
Post-65 January 1, 2020, and gradually January 1, 2020, and gm dually 

decr&esk1g to an ultimate trend decreasing to an ultimate trend 
rate of 4.05% over a period of rate of 4.05% OV91' a period of 
10 years. 10 years. 

Healthcare Trend Rates: The mortality table used for The morta"rty table used for 
Mortality: ectlve members is RP-2000 acilve members Is RP-2000 

Coni>lned Mortality Table Cornblood Mortel:ly Table 
projected with Scale BB to projeclod with Scale BB to 
2013 (multiplied by 50% for 2013 (multlplod by 50% for 
males and 30% for foma!os). males and 30% for femafes). 
For healthy reUred members For healthy retked members 
and benoflclar!es, lhe mortaity and beneficiaries. the mortality 
table used Is the RP-2000 table used is the RP.200() 
Combined Mortaity Table Combined Mortally Table 
projocted with Scale BB to projected with Scale BB to 
2013 {set-back for one year for 2013 (s&t·back ror one year for 
fomalos). For dlsabktd females). For disnbled 
members, the RP�2000 members. the RP-2000 
Comblnod Olsabled Mortality Combined Oi&abled Mottalty 
Table projected with Scale BB Table projected with Scale BB 
to 2013 {set--back four years tor to 2013 {set-back four years f0< 
males) Is used for the period males) is used for lhe period 
alter dlsabllity retirement after disability rotiremoot. 

2018 2017 

0.033049% 0.034121% 

$ 586,743 $ 685,949 

$ 836,880 $ 787,500 

70.11% 87.10% 

57.62% 52.4% 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

SCHEDULE  OF THE DISTRICT'S  CONTRIBuTIONS  (OPEB)

COUNTY  EMPLOYEES  RETIREMENT  SYSTEM

Years  Ended  December  31

Contractually  (Employer)  required  contributions

Contributions  in relation  to the

contractually  required  contributions

Contribution  deficiency  (excess)

District's  covered  payroll

Contributions  as a percentage  of

covered  payroll

2018  2017  2016  2015

$ 41,160  $ 37,547  $ 38,695  $ 37,037

41 160 37,547 38,695 37,037

$-$-$-$

$ 836,880  $ 787,500  $ 851,267  $ 843,338

4.70% 4.73% 4.64% 4.92%

The District's  contributions  above  include  only the contributions  to the County  Employees  Retirement  System  Insurance  Fund.

GASB 75 requires  the District  to present  the above information  for the CERS OPEB Plan for 10 years.  The information  will be expanded
annually  until a full 1 0-year  trend is compiled.

See accompanying  notes  to the  basic  financial  statements Page 34

HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICTS CONTRIBUTIONS (OPEB) 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Years Endod December 31 

2018 2017 � 2015 

Contractually (Employer) required contributions $ 41,160 $ 37,547 $ 38,695 $ 37,037 

Contributions In relation to the 
contractually required contribuUons 41,160 37,547 38,695 37,037 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ s $ $ 

Dlstrlct's covered payroll $ 836,880 $ 787,500 $ 851,267 $ 843,338 

Contributlons as a percentage of 
covered payroll 4.70% 4.73% 4.64% 4.92% 

The District's contributions above Include only the contrlbuUons to the County Employees Retirement System Insurance Fund. 

GASB 75 requires the District to 'present the above Information for the CERS OPEB Plan for 10 years. The lnfonnatlon will be expanded 
annually until a fu1110-year trend is compiled. 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements Page 34 
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INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR'S  REPORT  ON INTERNAL  CONTROL  OVER  FINANCIAL

REPORTING  AND  ON COMPLIANCE  AND  OTHER  MATTERS
BASED  ON AN AUDIT  OF FINANCIAL  ST  ATEMENTS  PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE  WITH  GOVERNMENT  AUDITING  STANDARDS

To the Commissioners  of the

Henry  County  Water  District  #2
Campbellsburg,  KY 40011

We  have  audited,  in accordance  with  auditing  standards  generally  accepted  in the United  States  of America  and
the standards  applicable  to financial  audits  contained  in Government  Auditing  Standards  issued by the

Comptroller  General  of the United  States,  the financial  statements  of Henry  County  Water  District  #2 as of and
for the year  ended  December  31, 2018,  and the related  notes  to the financial  statements,  which  collectively

comprise  Henry  County  Water  District  #2's  basic  financial  statements,  and have  issued  our  report  thereon  dated
June  28, 2019.

INTERNAL  CONTROL  OVER  FINANCIAL  REPORTING

In planning  and performing  our  audit  of the financial  statements,  we considered  Henry  County  Water  District
#2's internal  control  over  financial  reporting  (internal  control)  to determine  the audit  procedures  that  are

appropriate  in the circumstances  for the purpose  of expressing  our opinion  on the financial  statements,  but
not for  the purpose  of expressing  an opinion  on the effectiveness  of Henry  County  Water  District  #2's  internal

control.  Accordingly,  we do not express  an opinion  on the effectiveness  of Henry  County  Water  District  #2's
internal  control.

A deficiency  in internal  control  exists  when  the design  or operation  of a control  does  not allow  management  or
employees,  in the normal  course  of performing  their  assigned  functions,  to prevent,  or detect  and correct,

misstatements  on a timely  basis.  A material  weakness  is a deficiency,  or a combination  of deficiencies,  in
internal  control  such  that  there  is a reasonable  possibility  that  a material  misstatement  of the entity's  financial
statements  will not  be prevented,  or detected  and corrected,  on a timely  basis.  A significant  deficiency  is a

deficiency,  or a combination  of deficiencies,  in internal  control  that  is less severe  than a material  weakness
yet  important  enough  to merit  attention  by those  charged  with  governance.

Our  consideration  of internal  control  was  for  the limited  purpose  described  in the first  paragraph  of this  section
and was not designed  to identify  all deficiencies  in internal  control  that  might  be material  weaknesses  or

significant  deficiencies  and therefore,  material  weaknesses  or significant  deficiencies  may  exist  that  have  not
been identified.  We did identify  certain  deficiencies  in internal  control,  described  in the accompanying
schedule  of findings  and responses  as Items  20"l8-001  and 2018-002  that we consider  to be material
weaknesses.

Members  -  Private  Companies  Practice  Section  of  the  American  Institute  of  CPAs

Members  -  Kentucky  Society  of  Certified  Public  Accountants
Page  35

RAISOR, ZAPP & WOODS, PSC 
Certified Public Accountants ------------------------ 
Dennis S. Raisor, CPA 
Jerilyn P. Zapp, CPA 
Jeffery C. Woods, CPA 
Susan A. Dukes, CPA 

P.O. Box 354 • 513 Highland Ave • Carrolllon, KY 41008 
50:Z..732-6655 • taxcs@rzwcpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATIERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Commissioners of the 
Henry County Water District #2 

Campbellsburg, KY 40011 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Henry County Water District #2 as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise Henry County Water District#2's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
June 28, 2019. 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Henry County Water District 
#2's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Henry County Water District #2's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Henry County Water District #2's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not 
been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and responses as Items 2018-001 and 2018-002 that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 
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Commissioners  of  the
Henry  County  Water  DistriCt  #2
Page  Two

COMPLIANCE  AND  OTHER  MATTERS

As part of obtaining  reasonable  assurance  about  whether  Henry  County  Water  District  #2's  financial  statements
are free from material  misstatement,  we performed  tests  of its compliance  with certain  provisions  of laws,
regulations, contracts,  and grant  agreements,  noncompliance  with  which  could  have  a direct  and material  effect

on the determination of financial  statement amounts.  However,  providing  an opinion  on compliance  with  those
provisions  was not an objective  of our  audit,  and accordingly,  we do not express  such  an opinion.  The  results
of our  tests disclosed  no instances  of noncompliance  or other  matters  that  are required  to be reported  under
Government  Auditing  Standards.

HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2'S  RESPONSE  TO FINDINGS

Henry  County  Water  District  #2's response  to the findings  identified  in our audit is described  in the
accompanying  schedule  of findings  and responses.  Henry  County  Water  District  #2's  response  was not

subjected  to the auditing  procedures  applied  in the audit  of the financial  statements  and, accordingly,  we
express  no opinion  on it.

PURPOSE  OF THIS  REPORT

The  purpose  of this report  is solely  to describe  the scope  of our  testing  of internal  control  and compliance  and
the results of that  testing,  and not to provide  an opinion  on the effectiveness  of the entity's  internal  control  or
on compliance.  This  report  is an integral  part  of an audit  performed  in accordance  with Government  Auditing

Standards in considering  the entity's internal  control  and compliance.  Accordingly,  this communication  is not
suitable  for  any  other  purpose.

RAISOR.  ZAPP.  & WOODS  P.S.C

Certified  Public  Accountants
Carrollton,  Kentucky

June  28, 2019

Raisor,  Zapp  & Woods,  p.s.c.
CERTIFIED  PUBLIC  ACCOIINTANTS
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COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Henry County Water District #2's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2'5 RESPONSE TO FINDINGS 

Henry County Water District #2's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. Henry County Water District #2's response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on ii. 

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Q�, 2.,,_�p � lv � () .s c. 
RAISOR, ZAPP, & WOODS P.S.C 
Certified Public Accountants 
Carrollton, Kentucky 

June 28, 2019 

Raisor, Zallll & Woods, VS.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

SCHEDULE  OF FINDINGS  AND  RESPONSES

For  the  Year  Ended  December  31,  2018

SUMMARY  OF  AUDITOR'S  RESULTS

1. The auditor's  report expresses  an unmodified  opinion  on whether  the financial  statements  of Henry  County
Water  District  #2 were  prepared  in accordance  with  GAAP.

2. Two deficiencies  in internal control related to the audit of the financial statements  are reported in the Report on

Internal Control  Over Financial  Reporting  and on Compliance  and Other Matters Based on an Audit  of Financial
Statements  Performed in Accordance  with Government  Auditinq Standards.  Items 2018-001 and 2018-002
were reported as material  weaknesses.

3. No instances  of noncompliance  material to the financial statements  of Henry County Water  District #2, were
disclosed  during  the  audit.

FINDINGS  - FINANCIAL  ST ATEMENTS  AUDIT

GOVERNMENT  AUDITING  ST ANDARDS

DEFICIENCIES  IN INTERNAL  CONTROL

2018-001 SIZE OF ENTITY,  CROSS-TRAINING  AND CHECKING  PROCEDURES

CRITERIA:

Internal controls  should be in place to provide  management  with reasonable,  but not absolute, assurance  that assets
are safeguarded  against  loss from unauthorized  use or disposition,  and allow timely preparation  of financial  data
consistent  with management  assertions.

CONDITION:

Due to the size of the entity, cross-training  and checking procedures  are not in place for certain administrative
positions.  This limits internal control. This condition was also cited as a material  weakness  in the schedule  of
findings and responses for the year ended December  31, 2017 as Item 2017-001.

CAUSE:

Responsibilities  associated  with individual  positions  limit the availability  of individuals  to rotate duties and implement
checking procedures.

EFFECT:

This limitation may affect  the ability to timely and effectively  record, process, summarize  and report  financial  data.

RECOMMENDATION:

Management  should strive to provide cross-training  for administrative  staff  and implement  checking processes.

VIEWS of RESPONSIBLE  OFFICIALS  and PLANNED  CORRECTIVE  ACTIONS:

We concur  with the recommendation.  Management  believes adequate  resources  have been expended  and  control
procedures  implemented,  that are commensurate  with the staff size and responsibility  of financial personnel.
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of Henry County 
Water District #2 were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

2. Two deficiencies in internal control related to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Report on 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Items 2018-001 and 2018-002 
were reported as material weaknesses. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Henry County Water District #2, were 
disclosed during the audit. 

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL 

2018-001 SIZE OF ENTITY, CROSS-TRAINING AND CHECKING PROCEDURES 

CRITERIA: 

Internal controls should be in place to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets 
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and allow timely preparation of financial data 
consistent with management assertions. 

CONDITION: 

Due to the size of the entity, cross-training and checking procedures are not in place for certain administrative 
positions. This limits internal control. This condition was also cited as a material weakness in the schedule of 
findings and responses for the year ended December 31, 2017 as Item 2017-001. 

CAUSE: 

Responsibilities associated with individual positions limit the availability of individuals to rotate duties and implement 
checking procedures. 

EFFECT: 

This limitation may affect the ability to timely and effectively record, process, summarize and report financial data. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Management should strive to provide cross-training for administrative staff and implement checking processes. 

VIEWS of RESPONSIBLE OFFICIALS and PLANNED CORRECTIVE ACTIONS: 

We concur with the recommendation. Management believes adequate resources have been expended and control 
procedures implemented, that are commensurate with the staff size and responsibility of financial personnel. 
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HENRY  COUNTY  WATER  DISTRICT  #2

SCHEDULE  OF FINDINGS  AND  RESPONSES  (CONTINUED)
For  the  Year  Ended  December  31, 2018

FINDINGS  - FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS  AUDIT  (Continued)

GOVERNMENT  AUDITING  STANDARDS  (Continued)

DEFICIENCIES  IN INTERNAL  CONTROL  (Continued)

2018-002  FAILURE  TO PREPARE  COMPLETE  SET  OF FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS  INCLUDING  REQUIRED
NOTE  DISCLOSURES

CRITERIA:

Internal  controls  should  be in place  to provide  management  with reasonable,  but not absolute,  assurance  that
financial  statements  and required  notes  are prepared  in accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounting  principles.

CONDITION:

District financial  statements, including  the required  disclosures,  are prepared  as part  of the annual  audit.  This
condition was also  cited as a material  weakness  in the schedule  of findings  and responses  for the year  ended
December  31, 2017  as Item  2017-002.

CAUSE:

The  draft  financial  statements  and disclosures  are prepared  during  the audit  process.

EFFECT:

Management engaged the auditor's assistance to prepare the draff of the financial statements, including  the related

notes to the financial statements. Management reviewed,  approved,  and accepted responsibility for  the financial
statements  prior  to their  issuance.

RECOMMENDATION:

District  management  should  continue  to enhance  its knowledge  of reporting  requirements  in providing  oversight  of
this  service.

VIEWS  of  RESPONSIBLE  OFFICIALS  and  PLANNED  CORRECTIVE  ACTIONS:

The  outsourcing  of this  service  is a result  of management's  cost  benefit  decision  to avoid  incurring  internal  resource

costs.  We concur  with the recommendation  and will continue  to improve  our overall  accounting  knowledge  in

performing  our  oversight  responsibilities.  We are aware  of our  responsibilities  for  the financial  statements.  We
have  reviewed  and approved  the financial  statements  as presented.

COMPLIANCE  AND  OTHER  MATTERS

None
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HENRY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT #2 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

B. FINDINGS· FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT (Continued) 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (Continued) 

DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued) 

2018-002 FAILURE TO PREPARE COMPLETE SET OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INCLUDING REQUIRED 
NOTE DISCLOSURES 

CRITERIA: 

Internal controls should be in place to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
financial statements and required notes are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

CONDITION: 

District financial statements, including the required disclosures, are prepared as part of the annual audit. This 
condition was also cited as a material weakness in the schedule of findings and responses for the year ended 
December 31, 2017 as Item 20.17--002. 

CAUSE: 

The draft financial statements and disclosures are prepared during the audit process. 

EFFECT: 

Management engaged the auditor's assistance to prepare the draft of the financial statements, including the related 
notes to the financial statements. Management reviewed, approved, and accepted respcnsibility for the financial 
statements prior to their issuance. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

District management should continue to enhance its knowledge of reporting requirements in providing oversight of 
this service. 

VIEWS of RESPONSIBLE OFFICIALS and PLANNED CORRECTIVE ACTIONS: 

The outsourcing of this service is a result of management's cost benefit decision to avoid incurring internal resource 
costs. We concur with the recommendation· and will continue to improve our overall accounting knowledge in 
perfonming our oversight responsibilities. We are aware of our responsibilities for the financial statements. We 
have reviewed and approved the financial statements as presented. 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATIERS 

None 
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